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NOTICE

SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 14™ ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF B. N. AGRITECH LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON
TUESDAY, AUGUST 05, 2025 AT 01:00 PM THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC)
OR OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS (OVAM) TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESS:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements
of the Company for the Financial year ended on March 31, 2025 and the
reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon and in this regard,

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without
modifications as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025, and the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint Mr. Anubhav Agarwal (DIN: 02809290) who retires by rotation,
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as director liable to
retire by rotation and in this regard,

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without
modifications as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 that Mr. Anubhav Agarwal
(DIN: 02809290), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment as a Director of the Company.”

Special Business:

3. To ratify the remuneration of a cost auditor:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without
modifications as Ordinary Resolutions:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 read with the Rule
14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the act) (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) as amended
from time to time, the remuneration of M/s Dileep Verma & Associates , Cost
Accountants (Registration No. 100828) Cost Auditors of the Company for the
Financial Year 2025-26 as recommended by Audit Committee and appointed by
the Board of Directors in their meeting held on July 30, 2025 at a remuneration
of Rs. 50,000 (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) (Plus applicable Taxes and out of
pocket expenses, if any) to be paid to M/s Dileep Verma & Associates, Cost
Accountants (Registration No. 100828) be and is hereby ratified and approved”

4. To approve limits under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without
modifications, as a Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Section 180 (1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with applicable rules made there under and article of association of the Company
and/or any other provision as may be applicable, if any, and in supersession of the earlier
resolution passed with regard to Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, pursuant \
to the consent accorded by the Board of Directors, consent of the members be and is |
hereby accorded, accorded to create mortgage/ hypothecation and/or charge, on such
terms and conditions and at such time(s) and in such form and manner, and with such
ranking as to priority as the Board or Committee thereof, in its absolute discretion may
deem fit, on the whole or substantially the whole of the Company's anyone or more of
the undertakings or all of the undertakings, including present or future properties,
whether immovable or movable assets, comprised in any undertaking of the Company,
as may be agreed to in favour of the Bank(s), Financial Institution(s) or other person(s),
hereinafter referred to as the lenders, and/or Trustee(s) to secure borrowing up to the
limits delegated to the Board or Committee thereof, by the Shareholders from time to
time which will exceed the aggregate of the paid up share capital of the Company, its free
reserves and securities premium, provided that the total amount up to which moneys may
be borrowed by the Board shall not exceed the sum of Rs. 2,500 Crores (Rupees Two
Thousand and Five Hundred Crores Only) at any point of time, together with interest at
the respective agreed rates by issue of non-convertible debentures, bonds, terms loans,
and for other instruments including foreign currency borrowings, as the Board may deem
fit, to be issued in one or more tranches, to India/foreign banks, institutions, investors,
mutual funds, companies, other corporate bodies, resident/non-resident investors, foreign
nationals, and other eligible investors, and upon such terms and conditions, as may be
decided by the Board, including any increase as a result of devaluation/revaluation or
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fluctuation in the rates of exchange, together with interest, at the respective agreed rates,
compound interest, additional interest, liquidated damages, commitment charges,
premier on prepayment or on redemption, costs, charges, expense and other monies
covered by the aforesaid financial assistance under the respective documents, entered
into by the Company in respect of the said debentures/bonds/terms loans/other
instrument(s) in terms of their issue.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the securities to be created by the Company as
aforesaid may rank prior/Pari passu/subsequent with/to the mortgage and/or charges
already created or to be created in future by the Company and as may be agreed to
between the concerned parties.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to negotiate and settle the term and conditions with the concerned
lender(s) and further to do all such acts, deeds and things and to execute all documents
and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.

5. To approve borrowings limits under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without
modifications, as a Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in supersession
of the earlier resolution passed with regard to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013, pursuant to the consent accorded by Board of Directors, the consent of the
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to borrow and raise such sum or
sums of money or monies (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company's
bankers in the ordinary course of business) which will exceed the aggregate of the paid-
up share capital of the Company, its free reserves and securities premium, provided that
the total amount up to which moneys may be borrowed by the Board shall not exceed the
sum of INR 2,500 Crores (Rupees Two Thousand and Five Hundred Crore Only) from
time to time as may be required for the purpose of business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above
resolutions the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to finalize and execute
any and all agreements and documents, papers, etc and also authorized to do all such
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acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion consider necessary,
proper or desirable and to resolve any question, difficulty or doubt relating thereto, or
otherwise considered to be in the best interest of the Company.”

By the order of the Board of Directors

For B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

i
Ajay Kumar Agarwal nl:

\
N

(Whole Time Director) I\"‘\\ R
DIN: 02149270 \\ s

Date; 30/07/2025
Place: New Delhi
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NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement for Item No. 3, 4 & 5 pursuant to Section 102(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), is given below and forms part of this notice.

2. The Voting of members on resolution in the Annual General Meeting shall be done
by showing hands on all the resolutions as prescribed in the notice. A member is
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the Meeting) and are
not entitled to appoint a proxy to attend the meeting.

3. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs , the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are
entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through

VC/OAVM.

4. Since the AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM, there is no provision for
appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by
the members will not be available.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at
the Meeting.

6. Members are requested to notify immediately of any change in their addresses to
the Company at its Registered Office.

7. Members are requested to bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed as
Annexure-2 herewith to attend the meeting.

8. The Meeting has been convened by giving shorter notice as required under the
Act. The consent of the shareholders has been obtained.

9. Statutory Registers and all other documents referred to in the Notice are available
for Inspection from the date of circulation of this notice up to the date of the
meeting and the Members can inspect the same during the business hours i.e. from 09:00

AM to 05:00 PM

10. The Attendance Slip for the meeting is annexed hereto.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (""the Act')

ITEM NO. 3

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the act) read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the appointment of the Cost Auditor shall be made by the
Board of Directors on such remuneration as may be ratified by the Shareholders.

Under the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board while appointing the
Cost Auditors is required to approve the remuneration payable to them and the
remuneration so approved by the Board shall be ratified by the Shareholders.

Accordingly, as recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board has appointed.

In order to give effect to the same and as recommended by the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors in the Board Meeting held on July 30, 2025, has appointed M/s Dileep
Verma & Associates, Cost Accountants (Registration No. 100828) as Cost Auditors of
the Company to conduct audit of cost records made and maintained by the Company
pertaining to edible oil (Ceta Heading — 1507, 1511 and 1517) for the financial year
commencing on April 01, 2025 and ending on March 31, 2026 at a remuneration of Rs.
50,000 (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) (Plus applicable Taxes and out of pocket
expenses, if any).

The approval of the shareholders is sought by passing an ordinary resolution as set out
at item no. 3 in the notice, pursuant to the provisions of the act.

None of the directors, managers and key managerial personnel of the Company or their
respective relatives are concerned with or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
foregoing resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution proposed at Item No. 3 for your approval by way
of an Ordinary Resolution.

ITEMNO.4&5

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business
mentioned in the accompanying Notice:

Keeping in view the funds requirements of all the divisions of the Company for both
short and long term strategic and business objectives.
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For this purpose, the Company may, from time to time, raise finance from various
Banks and/or Financial Institutions and/or any other leading institutions and/or Bodies
Corporate and/or such other persons/individuals as may be considered fit, together with
the monies already borrowed by the Company which may exceed the aggregate of the
paid-up capital and free reserves of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors cannot borrow more than the aggregate amount of the paid-up capital of the
Company and its free reserves at any time except with the consent of the members of
the Company in general meeting.

In order to facilitate the borrowing made by the Company, it would be necessary to
create a charge on the assets or whole or part of the undertaking of the Company.

Accordingly, it is proposed to seek the approval of the members of the Company
approving the limits of borrowings and creation of charge on the Company assets with
respect to borrowing up to Rs. 2,500 (Rupees Two Thousand and Five Hundred Crore
only).

None of the directors, managers and key managerial personnel of the Company or their
respective relatives are concerned with or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
foregoing resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution proposed at [tem No. 4 & 5 for your approval by
way of a Special Resolution. '

By the order of the Board of Directors

For B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

Ajay Kunfar Agarwal |
(Whole Time Director) \E\
DIN: 02149270

Date: 30/07/2025
Place: New Delhi




ADDENDUM TO THE SHORTER NOTICE OF THE 14" ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (‘AGM’) DATED WEDNESDAY, JULY 30, 2025 OF B.N. AGRITECH
LIMITED (“THE COMPANY”) SCHEDULED TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY,
AUGUST 05,2025 AT 1:00 P.M. (IST) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC) OR
OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS (OVAM)

The Company had issued Shorter AGM Notice dated Wednesday, July 30, 2025 together with
Explanatory Statement in accordance with section 102 of Companies Act 2013 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), read along with rules made thereunder and
any other applicable statutory provisions (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), for seeking approval of the Members of the
Company on the various business item in the form of Special or Ordinary Resolution as
proposed therein. The AGM Notice has already been circulated to the Members on Thursday,
July 31, 2025, in due compliance with the provisions of the Act.

The shorter notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) shall form an integral part of the
notice of the AGM (as modified pursuant to this Addendum), which has already been circulated
to the shareholders of the Company. From the date hereof, the notice of the AGM (as modified
pursuant to this Addendum) shall be read and construed together with this Addendum. All other
contents of the notice of the AGM, save and except as specifically modified or supplemented
by this Addendum, shall remain unchanged.

Accordingly, Item No. 6, as detailed below, is proposed for the approval of the shareholders by
way of a Special Resolution.

ITEM NO 6: CHANGE IN DESIGNATION OF MR. AJAY KUMAR AGARWAL
FROM WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR TO MANAGING DIRECTOR

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197,203 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule V and the rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof), pursuant to
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration committee(Committee) and the consent of
the Board of Directors(Board), the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the change in designation of Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 02149270) from
Whole-time Director to Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years commencing
from August 01, 2025 on such terms and conditions including remuneration as approved by the
Committee/Board and subject to necessary approvals from regulatory authorities, if any
required.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profit in any financial
year during the aforesaid period, the company will pay Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal remuneration,
perquisites not exceeding the ceiling laid down in Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 as may be decided by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal, in the capacity of Managing
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Director, shall be liable to retire by rotation in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Nomination and Remuneration Committee / Board of
Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to finalize other terms of appointment
and scope of work as may be in the overall interest of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to take such steps as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution, including
filing necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and doing all acts, deeds, matters, and
things as may be required in this regard.”

By the order of the Board of Directors

For B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

Ajay Kumar Agarwal )g))
(Whole Time Director) R s
DIN: 02149270 R I
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned
in the accompanying Notice:

ITEM NO 6:

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on Thursday, July 31, 2025, has
approved the change in designation of Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 02149270) from
Whole-time Director to Managing Director of the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from August 01, 2025, subject to the approval of the members.

That Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal has been associated with the Company as Whole-time
Director, and has significantly contributed to the growth and development of the Company.
The Board is of the opinion that with his enhanced role and responsibilities as Managing
Director, the Company will be able to better leverage his leadership for the overall growth of
the Company.

The material terms of the agreement entered into by the company with Mr. Ajay Kumar
Agarwal, inter-alia as follows:-

a. Salary- Rs 5,00,000/- (Rs Five Lakh Only) per month with such revision as may be approved
by Board time to time

b. Commission- Not exceeding 5% net profit in an accounting year as may be decided by the
Board from time to time.

c. Perquisites and Allowances. In addition to salary Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal shall be entitled
to perquisites and allowances like accommodation or House Rent Allowance in lieu thereof,
medical reimbursement, children education allowance, leave travel allowance for self and
family, club fees, premium for medical insurance. Retirement benefits etc.

In accordance with the company’s rules in force or as the case may be approved by the Board
from time to time provided that aggregate value of such perquisites shall not exceed Rs
5,00,000/- per month.

In addition to above, he will also be entitled to the following benefits as may be approved by
the Board from time to time:-

i Company maintained Car with driver.

ii. Telephone/mobile/Laptop at residence.

iii. Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund

iv Payment of gratuity and retirement benefits.

v. Encashment of Leave

The change in designation involves revision of the terms of appointment, which have been
duly recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board. The appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal will be in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule V

AGRITECH
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The members are therefore requested to consider and approve the Special Resolution for the
change in designation from Whole-time Director to Managing Director.

thereto.

Details under Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the act and the details required under
Secretarial Standards of General Meetings are annexed here as Annexure-A.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, except Mr. Anubhav
Agarwal and Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal, are interested or concerned in the resolution.

A copy of the draft terms of appointment of Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal as Managing Director
is available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours i.e.
from 09:00 AM to 05:00 PM on any working day prior to the date of the meeting.

By the order of the Board of Directors

For B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

A\
Ajay Kumar Agarwal )
(Whole Time Director) B S '/
DIN: 02149270 X
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Table A.

n

ANNEXURE-A

Statement Pursuant to Section II of Schedule V of the Act and Secretarial Standard on
General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are as under

1

Nature of Industry

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and trading various
kinds of oil, oil seeds, solvent extraction, extracted oil cakes,

refined oil.

Date and Expected
date of
Commencement of

The Company was incorporated in the year 2011 and since
then had already been doing commercial operations.

Commercial
Production
3 |In case of new | NotApplicable
companies,
expected date of
commencement of
activities as per
project approved
by financial
institutions
appearing in the
prospectus
4 | Financial Particulars | (Amount in Rs Lakhs)
performance based | | Financial | 2024-25 2023-24 | 2022-23
on given indicators | | Year
(Standalone) Total 628520.05 | 366750.65 | 235525.34
revenue
Profit- 8126.32 4189.55 2719.92
After Tax
from
continuing
operations
5 | Foreign During the Financial year 2025-26, the company has not
investments or | entered into any Foreign Investments or collaborations.
Collaborators, if
any
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Information about Appointee:

Name Ajay Kumar Agarwal

Background Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal aged about 66 years has been associated
Details ,  Age, | with the Company since incorporation.

Qualification and | He is Graduate and have more than 22 years of experience as in Oil
Experience Industry. The Board places on record the valuable guidance, support

and advice extended by Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal during his tenure
as Director. He is founder Director & Promoter of the Company.

Past Remuneration

Rs. 56,85,000/- p.a as per March 31, 2025.

profile to industry
size of the
company, profile of
the position and
person (in case of
expatriates the
relevant details
would be with
the
his

respect to
country  of
origin)

Recognition or | NIL

awards

Job Profile and his | Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal has been Responsible for the affairs of the

suitability company and has now been entrusted with the substantial power of
management of the affairs of the Company.

Terms and | As per proposed resolution.

Conditions of

Appointment

Remuneration As per proposed resolution.

Proposed

Comparative Commensurate with the size and the operations of the Company the

remuneration profile of the appointees, the responsibilities shouldered on them

and the industry benchmarks, the remuneration proposed to be paid
is reasonable to that of the similar other companies.
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Pecuniary
relationship
directly or
indirectly with the
company, or
relationship with
the managerial
personnel

Save and expect Mr. Anubhav Agarwal being relative, none of the
other Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the company/their
relative are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution set out in item No. 6.

No. of Meetings
attended  during
the year

During the year 2025-26, the appointee has attended 7(seven)
Board meetings

Date of  first
appointment  on
Board

23.06.2011

Shareholding in the
Company

6456935 shares as on March 31, 2025.
6.97% of shareholding.

Other Directorship, Membership/Chairmanship of the Committees of other Boards

NIL

nAGRITECH
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ANNEXURE-1

PROXY FORM
FORM NO. MGT-11
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

NAME OF THE COMPANY: B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE: 217, ADANI, INSPIRE-BKC, SITUATED G BLOCK BKC
MAIN ROAD, BANDRA KURLA COMPLEX, BANDRA(EAST), MUMBAI, MUMBAI,
MAHARASHTRA, INDIA, 400051.

Name of the member (s): E-mail Id.:

No. of shares held:
Registered address: Folio No.

DPID*,

Client ID*

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

1/We, being the memberof .......... Shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint,

1. Name:..........
Address: .........
E-Mail Id: ..........
Signature: ............ or failing him.

2. Name:..........
Address: .........
E-Mail Id: ..........
Signature: ............ or failing him.

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 14" Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 05" day of August, 2025 at 01:00 PM
at shorter through Video Conferencing (VC) Or Other Audio-Visual Means (OVAM) and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below.
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Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of
the Company for the Financial year ended on March 31, 2025 and the reports of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Mr. Anubhav Agarwal (DIN: 02809290) who retires by rotation, and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as director liable to retire by
rotation.

3. To ratify the remuneration of a cost auditor.

Special Business:

4. To approve limits under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. To approve borrowings limits under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Affix
Revenue
. - Ih 7
Signed this 30" Day of July, 2025 Stamp
Signature of Proxy Signature of Shareholder

Note:

1. This form of Proxy, to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the Company. not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

2. For the resolutions, explanatory statements and notes please refer to the Notice of
Extraordinary General Meeting.

3. Please complete all details including details of member(s) in the above box before
submission
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ANNEXURE-2

ATTENDANCE SLIP

The 14" Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, August 05, 2025 at 01:00 PM
through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OVAM).

Name of the attending member

Folio No. / Client ID

No. of Shares

Name of Proxy (to be filled, if proxy is
attending)

I hereby record my presence at the 14™ Annual General Meeting of B.N. Agritech
Limited to be held at shorter notice on Tuesday, August 05, 2025 at 01:00 PM through
Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OVAM).

Signature of Shareholder/Authorized Representative
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To
The Members,

B.N. Agritech Limited,

Your directors

take immense pleasure
presenting the 14" Annual Report of the company
together with the Audited financial statements for

the financial year ended on March 31, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance of the Company during
the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized

in

below:
(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended | Year Ended

315t March 315t March

2025 2024
Revenue from| 6,27,979.26 3,66,637.90
operations
Other income | 540.79 112.75
Total Income | 6,28,520.05 3,66,750.65
Cost of Material ¢ 14 76743 |3.62.896.18
Consumed
Change il 1991336) | (13,756.87)
mventories
Employee
Benefi Exnenise 3,053.33 1,642.29
Finance Cost 8,522.93 5,555.09
Depreciation
and
Avrotiization 2,209.46 1.335.73
Expenses
Other Expenses | 7,160.32 3,210.74
Total Expenses| 6,16,500.12 3,60,883.16
Exceptional 95.07 4.63
Items
Frofit.  beforel . g0a 57 5,862.86
Tax
Current Tax 3,007.58 1,564.49
Tax related to

. 924.34 196.68

previous years

Deferred Tax | (133.37) (87.85)
Prolit for thet gyngas 4,189.55
year

Earnings per share

Basic 35.02 21.01
Diluted 24.80 18.79

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
AND BUSINESS OPERATION

The Company’s revenue from operations in FY
2024-25 is INR 6,27,979.26 (In Lakhs) as
compared to INR 3,66,637.90 (In Lakhs) in FY
2023-24, which represent an increase of 41.61%
compared to the previous financial year.

The Company has earned Profit after tax of INR.
8,126.32 (In Lakhs) in FY 2024-25 as compared
to INR. 4,189.55 (In Lakhs) in FY 2023-24.

The Edible Oils of the company stands out as a
premier choice for discerning consumers seeking
excellence in cooking oils. Renowned for their
unwavering commitment to quality. The B.N.
Agritech Ltd meticulously sources the finest raw
materials and employs state-of-the-art production
processes. With a reputation built on a foundation
of trust and consistency, B.N. Agritech Ltd,
Edible Oil Company not only meet but exceed
industry standards, ensuring a premium culinary
experience. From health-conscious options to
versatile cooking oils, their diverse product range
caters to various preferences. Rigorous quality
control measures, transparent sourcing practices,
and a focus on nutritional value make B.N.
Agritech Ltd a reliable companion in the kitchen,
embodying a commitment to both taste and well-
being.

Mission

Our mission is to build a healthier nation by
fostering upholding  high

innovation and




standards. We are dedicated to creating a positive
impact, nurturing well-being through state-of-the-
art solutions, and having an unwavering
commitment to excellence.

Vision

Building nation with healthy lifestyle through
Innovative, Quality, Accessible and Sustainable
solutions.”

3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the
business of the Company during FY 2024-25.

4. DIVIDEND

The Company has not declared any dividends
during FY 2024-25.

B AMOUNT
RESERVES

TRANSFERRED _TO

During the year under review, your company
transferred INR 8,126.32 (In Lakhs) under the
head Reserve and Surplus.

6. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital

The company's authorized share capital as of
March 31, 2025 was %1,46,90,00,000 (Rupees
One Hundred Forty-Six Crore Ninety Lakhs Only)
comprises of Equity Share Capital INR
1,35,90,00,000 divided into 13,59,00,000 Equity
Shares of ¥10 each and Preference Share Capital
of INR 11,00,00,000 divided into 1,10,00,000
Preference Shares of 10 each.

During the year under review, the following
changes occurred to the authorized share capital:
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Increase in Authorized Share Capital:

° The Company during the year under
review, in the Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 10/03/2025, has increased the authorized
equity share capital from ¥32,00,00,000 (Rupees
Thirty Two Crores Only) divided into 3,20,00,000
(Three Crore Twenty Lakh Equity Shares of ¥10
each) to ¥1,35,90,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred
Thirty Five Thousand Crores and Ninety Lakhs
Only) divided into 13,59,00,000 (Thirteen Crore
Fifty Nine Lakhs Equity Shares of ¥10 each) by
creating 10,39,00,000 additional equity shares of
Z10 each.

Paid up Share Capital:

As of March 31, 2025 the Company's paid-up
share capital was ¥ 92,68,39,820 (Rupees Ninety-
Two Crores Sixty-Eight Lakhs Thirty-Nine
Thousand Eight Hundred and Twenty Only). This
capital is comprised of 9,26,83,982 shares of T 10
each and the Company already have a paid-up
capital of ¥ 19,94,23,600 (Rupees Nineteen Crore
Ninety-Four Lacs Twenty-Three Thousand and
Six Hundred only) comprising of 1,99,42,360
shares of ¥ 10 each.

During the financial year under review, the
Company allotted 39,22,530 shares on a private
placement basis to Wave Edible Oils Limited of X
54,91,54,395 at a issue price of T 140 per share
each comprising Face Value of ¥ 10 per share each
and a premium of ¥ 130 per share each.

During the financial year under review, the
Company has converted 1,00,89,883 Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 10 per share
each into equity share of ¥ 10 per share each,
which are as follows-



“ Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited
— Conversion of 61,13,748 (Sixty-One Lacs
Thirteen Thousand Seven Hundred and Forty-
Eight only) 0% CCPS into equity share of the
Company at X 10 per share, vide Board resolution
dated March 13, 2025.

° B.N. Raj Infratech Private Limited -
Conversion of 19,41,418 (Nineteen Lacs Forty-
One Thousand Four Hundred and Eighteen only)
0% CCPS into equity share of the Company at
10 per share, vide Board Resolution dated March
13, 2025.

© S. G. S. G. Infra Rentals Private Limited —
Conversion of 20,34,717 (Twenty Lacs Thirty-
Four Thousand Seven Hundred and Seventeen
only) 0% CCPS into equity share of the Company
at ¥ 10 per share, vide Board Resolution dated
March 13, 2025.

3 During the financial year under review, the
Company allotted 5,87,29,209 shares of ¥ 10 per
share each on the right issue basis to different
persons or entities, vide Board Resolution dated
March 16, 2025, which are as follows:
e Anubhav Agarwal-
Allotment of 2,86,20,375 (Two Crore
Eighty-Six Lacs Twenty Thousand and
Three Hundred Seventy-Five only) equity
shares of ¥ 10 per share each.
e Growth Harvest Industries Private
Limited-
Allotment of 1,83.41,244 (One Crore
Eighty-Three Lacs Forty-One Thousand
and Two Hundred Forty-Four only) equity
shares of ¥ 10 per share each.
e Wave Edible Oils Limited-
Allotment of 1,17,67,590 (One Crore
Seventeen Lacs Sixty-Seven Thousand
and Five Hundred Ninety only) equity
shares of ¥ 10 per share each.
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7. ANNUAL RETURN

The Company doesn’t have any website.
Therefore, there is no need for publication of
Annual Return.

8. DETAILS OF DIRECTOINR AND
KEY MANAGERIAL PEINRONNEL

(i) Directors:
As on March 31, 2025 the Board comprises of the
following Directors:

i:;_ Name Designation
L. Anubhav Agarwal* | Managing
Director
2. Ajay Kumar Whole Time
Agarwal Director
3 Chintan Ajaykumar | Non-Executive
Shah Director
4, Sarvesh Bhasin Independent
Director
3. Aditi Sharma Independent
Director

* In the Board Meeting held on May 19, 2025,
there is a change in the designation of Mr.
Anubhav Agarwal from Managing Director to
Non-Executive Director.

The Board composition of your Company is in
compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Board is of
the opinion that the Independent Directors of the
Company has the required integrity, expertise, and
experience (including proficiency) and are
persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill
the conditions specified in the Act as well as the
Rules made thereunder and are independent of the
management.

(i)  Key Managerial Personnel
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As on March 31, 2025, the following were Key
Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company in
accordance with provisions of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013:

(a) Anubhav Agarwal - Managing Director
(MD)

(b)  Ajay Kumar Agarwal- Whole Time
Director (WTD)

(c) Randeep Plaha - Chief Financial Officer
(CFO)

(d) Charu Mahara - Company Secretary (CS)

During the year there has been changes in the Key
Managerial Personnel,

e In the Board Meeting held on March 29,
2025, Mr. Randeep Plaha (Chief Financial
Officer) has resigned from the Company.

e In the Board Meeting held on May 19,
2025, there is a change in the designation
of Mr. Anubhav Agarwal from Managing
Director to Non-Executive Director

e In the Board Meeting held on June 05,
2025, Ms. Charu Mahara (Company
Secretary) has resigned from the
Company.

Director Liable to Retire by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and
the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Anubhav Agarwal (DIN: 02809290), Director of
the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being
eligible, offer himself for reappointment and the
directors recommend his reappointment.

9. BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2024-25, a total of 17
(Seventeen) meetings of the Board of Directors of
the Company were held. The intervening gap
between the two Board Meetings was within the

period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
The details of board meetings are as under:
26/04/2024, 16/05/2024, 22/05/2024, 16/06/2024,
06/07/2024, 15/07/2024, 05/09/2024, 20/09/2024,
22/10/2024, 21/11/2024, 06/12/2024, 24/12/2024,
21/01/2025, 21/02/2025, 13/03/2025, 16/03/2025
and 29/03/2025.

10. AUDIT COMMITTEE

In terms of section 177(1) of the Companies Act
2013, the Audit committee of the company as on
March 31, 2025 comprises of the following
Directors.

1. Aditi Sharma- Chairman (Non-Executive
& Independent Director)

2, Anubhav Agarwal - Member (Managing
Director)

3. Sarvesh Bhasin - Member (Non-Executive
& Independent Director)

During the year under review, 03 (Three)
meetings of the Audit Committee were held on
22/05/2024, 05/09/2024 and 24/12/2024. All
the recommendations made by the Audit
Committee were considered and accepted by
the Board.

11. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 178(1), the
company is required to constitute a Nomination &
Remuneration committee comprising of three or
more Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination & Remuneration committee of
the company as on March 31, 2025 comprises of
the following Directors.

L Sarvesh Bhasin - Chairman (Non-
Executive & Independent Director
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2. Chintan Ajaykumar Shah — Member (Non-
Executive Director)

3. Aditi Sharma — Member (Non-Executive
& Independent Director

During the year under review, 01 (One) meetings
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
were held on 26/04/2024 and all the
recommendations made by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committees were accepted by the
Board.

12. CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

SOCIAL

The Company contributes progressively to the
socioeconomic and environmental advancement
of the planet with ‘Corporate Social
Responsibility” (CSR) at the very core of its
existence. To meet its goals, the Company drives
its corporate social responsibility agenda through
its CSR arm.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has
constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Committee of the Company. As on March
31, 2025 the CSR Committee was comprised of
the following members:

1. Mr. Chintan Ajaykumar Shah - Chairman
(Non-Executive Director)

2. Mr. Anubhav Agarwal - Member
(Managing Director)

3. Ms. Aditi Sharma - Member (Independent
Director & Non-Executive Director)

The CSR Committee has formulated and
recommended CSR Policy to the Board. The CSR
policy indicates the activities to be undertaken by
the Company as specified under Schedule VII of
the Act, which has been approved by the Board.

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company
must contribute INR 81,25,000 towards CSR
Expenditure, but the Company spent only INR.
62,35,000 and the remaining CSR amount of INR.
18,90,000 was contributed for the ongoing project
and was transferred to an unspent CSR account.

A Report on CSR activities in accordance with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as
“Annexure -I11".

13. PARTICULAINR _ OF __ LOANS,
GUARANTEES __AND __INVESTMENTS
UNDER SECTION 186 THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company
has provided guarantee or given any loan or make
any investments in compliance with the provisions
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Statement containing salient features of the
financial statements of Associate Companies and
the details of guarantee has been enclosed in Form
AOC- 1 with this report. “Annexure -1”

14. PARTICULAINR OF CONTRACTS
OR_ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All Related party transactions (falling within the
purview of Section 188) were entered by the
company during the Financial Year ended March
31, 2025 are at arm’s length basis.

The Followings details have been enclosed in
Form AOC-2 with this report. “Annexure -I11”

15. AUDITORS AND
REPORT

AUDITORS
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Statutory Auditors:

M/S JSMG & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 025006C) were appointed as
Statutory Auditors for a period of 5 years in the
Annual General Meeting held in year 2022 in
terms of section 139(2) of the Companies Act,
2013. The Auditors” Report for the financial year
2024-25 does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark. The Auditors’
Report is enclosed with the financial statements in
this Annual Report.

During the period under review, no incident of
fraud was reported by the Statutory Auditors
pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act
2013.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the
Auditors’ Report and Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further
comments.

Cost Auditor and Cost Records:

M/S Dileep Verma & Associates, Cost
Accountants (Registration No.100828) were
appointed as Cost Auditors of the Company for
Conducting the Cost Audit for the Financial Year
2024-25. The Board of Directors in their meeting
held on 05/09/2024 have re-appointed M/s. Dileep
Verma &  Associates, Cost Accountants
(Registration No.100828) as Cost Auditors of the
Company to conduct the cost audit for the
financial year 2024-25 subject to the ratification
of their remuneration by the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The cost accounts and records of the Company are
duly prepared and maintained as required under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act. 2013.

Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board at its meetings
held on 24/12/2024 has appointed M/S MEHTA
& MEHTA, Practicing Company Secretaries as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, is annexed herewith
marked as “Annexure -IV” to this Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

16. MATERIAL CHANGES
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

The Company proposed merger with BN Holdings
Limited as the reasons and circumstances leading
to and justifying the proposed Scheme of the
Transferor Companies with the Transferee
Company, which make it beneficial for all the
concerned stakeholders, including the members of
the Transferor Companies and Transferee
Company, are as follows:

(i) Operational integration and better
facility utilization: The amalgamation
will provide an opportunity for a
reduction of operational costs through
pooling of orders, improved sales and
production planning. Further, culture
of sharing of best practices, cross-
functional learnings, will be fostered
which will promote greater systemic
efficiency. Also, pooling of resources
of the Transferor Companies with the




resources of the Transferee Company
will lead to symergy of operations,
seamless access to the assets of the
Transferor Companies.
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Companies and access to cash flows
generated by the combined business.
Further, efficiency in cash
management will improve

(i)  Centralized procurement and substantially enabling the entities to
Inventory management: Inventory have unfettered access to cash flow
management and sourcing of stores, generated which can be deployed for
spares, and services can be managed growth and sustenance. Accordingly,
centrally which will increase scale of the Scheme is commercially and
operations thereby improving economically viable, feasible, fair and
negotiating power, reducing sourcing reasonable and would be in the interest
and inventory management cost. of the Transferor Companies and the

(iii)  Efficiency in customer approach: Transferee Company, and their

The combined entity 1i.e. the
Transferee Company will have a
broader portfolio of services targeted
at a wider array of Customer spread
across various locations. This will also
enable the Transferee Company to

respective shareholders and all other
stakeholders concerned (including
Employees) and will not be prejudicial
to the interests of any concerned
Shareholder or Creditor or general
public at large.

address newer solutions and services
to its customer and enhance its 1% CONSERVATION _OF ENERGY,
marketing capabilities. TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION,
(iv)  Efficiency in management of FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
business: Rationalization and OuUTGO
standardization of the business
processes, economies of scale, The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption,
corporate and administrative Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as
efficiencies, and streamlining of under:
operations to enable more efficient
management, control and day to day
operations, eliminating duplicative
communication and  burdensome
coordination efforts across multiple

a) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Company is taking all the necessary steps for
the Conservation of energy and for its efficient

entities. Amalgamation will help in the utilization.

achievement of greater managerflent The company has
foc1_xs and contrF)I over t}.IC combined Stepis taken fioe fnkeis sl DGOSR
business operations leading to value conservation steps for energy

creation for all the stakeholders.

(v) Efficiency in working capital and
cash flow management: Greater
efficiency in management of cash
balances presently available with the

conservation.

Steps taken for utilizing | The company is

alternate sources of energy|  Pplanning to use
alternative source of




energy. Like solar
energy.

Capital investment in
33energy conservation NA
equipment

b) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Efforts made for technology NA
absorption
Benefits derived NA
Expenditure on Research & NA
Development, if any

Details of technology imported, | NA
if any

Year of import NA

Whether imported technology NA
fully absorbed

Areas where absorption of NA
imported technology has not
taken place, if any

¢)  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/
OUTGO:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Earnings Current Year: INR 9367.21
Previous Year: 0.00

Out Go Current Year: 0.00
Previous Year: INR 7815.71

18. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review, your Company
enjoyed a cordial relationship with Stakeholders
and employees at all levels.

BN e

19. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES

The company has no subsidiary and joint venture,
but company have one associate company namely
Nutrica Foundation. The Statement containing
salient features of the financial statements of
Associate Companies containing details has been
enclosed in the Form AOC-1 with this report as
Annexure 1.

As the Company is not required to prepare
Consolidated Financial Statements.

20. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company adopts a systematic approach to
mitigate various types of risks viz. Environmental,
Business, Operational, Financial and others
associated with accomplishment of objectives,
operations, revenues, and regulations. The
Company manages, monitors, and reports on the
principal risks and uncertainties that can impact on
its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. The
Company has implemented a Management
System that incorporates a framework for
managing risks and internal controls. The
Company’s management systems, organizational
structure, processes, standards, and behaviors
together form the Management System that
governs how the Company conducts the business
and manages associated risks. The Company
continues to integrate Risk Management, Internal
Controls Management and Assurance frameworks
and processes to drive a common integrated view
of risks, optimal risk mitigation responses and
efficient management of internal control and
assurance activities. This integration is enabled by
all three being fully aligned with Group level
methodologies, processes, and systems.
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21, POLICY ON DIRECTORS
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
designed to attract, retain, and reward talent that
contributes to the long-term success of the
Company, thereby enhancing shareholder value
and fostering a high-performance culture. The
policy establishes criteria for determining the
qualifications, competencies, positive attributes,
and independence required for the appointment of
directors, whether executive, non-executive, or
independent. Additionally, it outlines the process
for recommending remuneration policies for the
Directors, Key Management Personnel (KMP),
and Senior Management to the Board. This
includes reviewing corporate goals related to
executive  compensation, evaluating  the
performance of executive Directors in light of
these goals, and determining their compensation
based on this evaluation. The policy also entails
making recommendations to the Board regarding
KMP and Senior Management compensation and
suggesting incentive and equity-based plans that
require Board approval.

22. REMUNERATION

During the financial year the Company has paid
Managerial Remuneration amounting to INR
384.67 (In Lakhs) to the Director of the Company
and paid INR 4.15 (In Lakhs) as Sitting Fees to the
Independent Directors and Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

23. RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION
BY MD / WTD FROM A COMPANY OR
FOR RECEIPT OF COMMISSION /
REMUNERATION FROM IT HOLDING
OR SUBSIDIARY

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Managing
director/ whole time director has not received any
commission from the Company, its holding or
subsidiary Companies.

24. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT &
MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS __OR ___COURTS _ OR
TRIBUNAL

During the year under review, the registered office
of the Company has shifted from New Delhi to
Mumbai, Maharashtra with the approval of the
Regulators.

25. STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management has taken all necessary steps to
plug the internal control weaknesses. The
management has implemented an effective and
meaningful system in place to safeguard the assets
of the company.

The board of directors of the Company in the
meeting held on 22/05/2024 have appointed M/s
Garg Gul & Co, to conduct the Internal Audit of
the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 in
terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The internal Auditors have made a detailed
analysis and submitted their reports to the Audit
Committee and before the board.

26. DEPOSITS

During the year under review your Company has
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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27. DECLARATION BY
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

With respect to declaration given by Independent
Directors under section 149(6) of the Act, the
board hereby confirms that all the independent
directors of the company have given a declaration
and have confirmed that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided under Section 149(6)
and there has been no change in the circumstances
which may affect their status as Independent
Directors of the Company.

28. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year, the Company has complied with
all the applicable Secretarial Standards.

29. STATEMENT INDICATING THE
MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL
EVALUATION HAS BEEN MADE BY THE
BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE,
ITS DIRECTOINR, AND THAT OF ITS
COMMITTEES

The Board carried out an annual evaluation of its
own performance, the Independent Directors,
individually as well as the evaluation of the other
Committees of the Board working. The
performance evaluation of all the Directors was
carried out by the Board of Directors.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and
the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by
the Independent Directors.

Your directors feel pleasure in informing the
members that the performance of the Board as a
whole and its members individually was judged
satisfactory.

During the year under review, the Independent
Directors of the Company have duly conducted

their meeting on 28/03/2025 in accordance with
the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

30. DISCLOSURE ON
ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL
MECHANISM POLICY

As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of
the Board and their Power) Rules, 2013, the
Company has established a Vigil Mechanism
policy which overseas by the committee, the
genuine concerned expressed by the employees
and other Directors. The company has also
provided adequate safeguards against the
victimization of employees and directors who
express their concerns. The Company has also
provided direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee on reporting issues concerning
the interest of employees and the Company.

31. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place anti-sexual harassment
policy on ‘Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace’ in
accordance with the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 (*POSH”) and Rules made
thereunder. Internal Complaints Committee has
been set-up to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment at workplaces in
accordance with POSH. The Internal Complaint
Committee  ("Committee™) constituted in
compliance with POSH ensures a free and fair
enquiry process with clear timelines for
resolution.
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During the year under review, the company has no
complaints received and pending with the
committee.

32. DETAILS OF  APPLICATION
MADE FOR OR PROCEEDING PENDING
UNDER INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE., 2016:

During the year under review, there were no
applications made or proceedings pending in the
name of the company under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

33. DETAILS __OF __ DIFFERENCE
BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON
ONE _TIME _SETLLEMENGT __ AND
VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN
FROM _BANKS _AND _ FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there was no
valuation relating to One-time settlement.

34. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In terms of the provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 5 of The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
particulars relating to statement containing the
remuneration of the employees including such
other details as are required to be disclosed under
relevant section is being excluded from this board
report for Financial Year ending March 31, 2025
as this compliance is applicable for listed
companies only.

35. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section
134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your directors
confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures,

b) the directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and
of the profit /loss of the Company for that period,

c) the directors had taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities,

d) the directors had prepared the annual
accounts on a going concern basis,

e) the directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The board place on record their appreciations of
the whole hearted and sincere co-operation
received by the Company during the year from the
employees, customers, clients, banker and various
Government authorities at all levels.
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For and on behalf of the Board of the Director

For B.N. Agritech Limited

Ajay Kumar Agarwal Anubhav Agarwal
(Whole time Director) (Director)
DIN:02149270 DIN: 02809290

Date: 30/07/2025
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure-I
FORM AQOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/Associate Companies/ Joint
Venture
Part A Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

1. S. No. NA
2. Name of the subsidiary NA
3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired NA
4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the NA

holding company's reporting period.

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant NA

financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

6. Share capital NA
7. Reserves and surplus NA
8. Total assets NA
9. Total Liabilities NA
10. Investments NA
11. Turnover NA
12. Profit before taxation NA
13. Provision for taxation NA
14, Profit after taxation NA
15. Proposed Dividend NA
16. Extent of shareholding (in percentage) NA

*NA — Not Applicable

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — NA

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year-NA
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NAME OF ASSOCIATES NUTRICA
FOUNDATION
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2024
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or
16/02/2024

acquired.

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company on the

year end.

No. of shares,

500 Equity Shares

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture,

INR 5,000.00

Extent of Holding (in percentage),

50.00%

4. Description of how there is a significant influence.

There is a significant
influence due to the
percentage (50 %) of
equity Share capital.

5. Reason why the associate/Joint venture Is not consolidated.

The consolidation of
the associate
company with the
investor company is
not required as
specified in the
Auditors Report.

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance

INR 20,77,500.00
Sheet as on 31 March, 2024.
7. Profit or loss for the year as on 31% March, 2024.
i. Considered in Consolidation Not applicable

il. Not Considered in Consolidation

INR 41,45,000.00

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations — NA
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year — NA




bn AGRITECH

Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, the details of loans, investments and
guarantees for the Financial Year 2024-25 are shown below:

Particulars Date of making loans | Name of the person to Amount
or guarantee whom it is made
Investment in Mutual Baroda BNP Paribas
Fund Manufacturing and
HDFC Short Term Debt
15-06-2024 Fund INR 2,10,68,195
Corporate Guarantee Indifi Capital Private
05-09-2024 Limited INR 20,00,00,000
Corporate Guarantee 24-12-2024 CSB Bank Limited INR 35,00,00,000
Corporate Guarantee 24-12-2024 REVX Capital Fund INR 40,00,00,000
Corporate Guarantee Ujjivan Small Finance
24-12-2024 Bank Limited INR 40,00,00,000
Corporate Guarantee 21-02-2025 IDBI Bank INR 50,00,00,000
Corporate Guarantee Northern Arc Capital
16-03-2025 Limited INR 15,00,00,000

Date: 30/07/2025
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of the Director

Ajaj %umar Agarwal

(Whole time Director)
DIN :02149270

B.N. Agritech Limited

o=

Anubhav Agarwal
(Director)
DIN : 02809290
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Annexure-I1

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related

parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship -
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction -
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or -
transaction including the value, if any
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or -
arrangements or transactions’
f) Date of approval by the Board -
g) Amount paid as advances, if any -
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General -
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. 1 | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Salasar Balaji Overseas
Private Limited
(Companies in which
Directors/KMP have
significant influence)

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sales
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Yearly Ongoing
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 17.00 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board 21/02/2025
f) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL. No. 2 [ Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Salasar Balaji Overseas

Private Limited
(Companies In Which




bn soRITECH

Directors/KMP Have
Significant Influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchases
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Yearly Ongoing
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 38.83 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board 21/02/2025
f) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL.No.3 | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship A1l Agri Global Limited
(Companies In Which
Directors/KMP Have
Significant Influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sales
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Yearly Ongoing
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 12.00 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board 21/02/2025
f) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL. No. 4 | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Epitome Industries India
Limited
(Companies In Which
Directors/KMP Have
Significant Influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sales
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Yearly Ongoing
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 0.35 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board 21/02/2025
f) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL. No. 5 | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship B.N. Corporate Park Private
Limited
(Companies In Which
Directors/KMP Have
Significant Influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchases
¢) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Yearly Ongoing
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 15.71 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board 21/02/2025
f) Amount paid as advances, if any -
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Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

L S Automobile and Finance
Company Limited
(Companies in which
Directors/KMP have
significant influence)

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Repayment of Loan
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction One Time
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 1088.98 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
€) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL. No.7 | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NBC Agri International
Private Limited
(Companies in which
Directors/KMP have
significant influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Repayment of Loan
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction One Time
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 1720.00 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL. No.8 | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship S.G.S.G. Infra Rentals Private
Limited
(Companies in which
Directors/KMP have
significant influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Repayment of Loan
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction One Time
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 115.66 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL. No.9 | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Salasar Balaji Overseas
Private Limited
(Companies in which
Directors/KMP have
significant influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Borrowings
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction One Time
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 22.10 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL. Particulars Details
No.10
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Anubhav Agarwal




bn AGRITECH

(Companies in which
Directors/KMP have
significant influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Borrowings
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction One Time
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 2984.66 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Amount paid as advances, if any -
SL. Particulars Details
No.11
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Chintan Ajaykumar Shah
(Companies in which
Directors/KMP have
significant influence)
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Borrowings
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction One Time
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rs. 1.00 (In Lacs)
transaction including the value, if any
e) Amount paid as advances, if any -

Note: A Brief description of Related Party Transactions that took place during the year are
mentioned in notes forming a part of the Financial Statements of the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of the Director
B.N. Agritech Limited

ot Do

Ajay Kumar Agarwal Anubhav Agarwal

Place: 30/07/2025 (Whole time Director) (Director)
Place: New Delhi DIN :02149270 DIN : 02809290
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

| A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or programs:

B.N. Agritech Limited (“the Company”) is committed to conduct business in a socially,
economically and environmentally responsible and sustainable manner, which enables the creation
and distribution of wealth for the betterment of all its stakeholders, internal as well as external,
through the implementation and integration of ethical systems and sustainable management
practices. In view of this the Company has laid a balanced emphasis on all aspects of Corporate
Social Responsibility (“CSR”) and sustainability with regard to its internal operations, activities
and processes, as well as undertake initiatives and projects to facilitate capacity building,
empowerment of communities, inclusive socioeconomic growth, environment protection,
promotion of green and energy efficient technologies, development of backward regions, and
upliftment of the marginalized and underprivileged sections of the society.

The Company’s Board of Directors has formulated Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR Policy). '

2. The Present Composition of the CSR Committee:

During the financial year 2024-25 the following was composition of the CSR Committee:

Number of
REIDeFot meetings of CSR
Sr. . Designation/Nature| meetings of CSR : .
Name of Director ¢ i ; Committee
No. of Directorship Committee held .
during the year IR0 HOXISE
g y the year
1. | Mr. Chintan Ajay Kumar Shah Chairman I 1
2. | Mr. Anubhav Agarwal Member 1 1
3. | Ms. Aditi Sharma Member 1 1

3. Web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: NA

4. Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: NA
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5. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub- rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
if applicable (attach the report): The average CSR obligation of the Company is less than Rs. 10
Crores, hence the Impact Assessment is not applicable to the Company.

6. Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of sub- rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for
set-off for the financial year, if any:

SI. No | Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be
from preceding financial years off for the financial year,
(in Rs.) if any (in Rs.)
Not Applicable

Total

T Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

Average net profit for last three financial years as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
is Rs. 40,60,02,081.56. However as per DPE guidelines on CSR, 2% of the Average Net Profit of
the three preceding year is taken as the budget for CSR activities for F.Y. 2024-25.

Net Profit of F.Y. 2021-22 Rs. 26,88,80,015.00
Net Profit of F.Y. 2022-23 Rs. 36,18,30,637.00
Net Profit of F.Y. 2023-24 Rs. 58,73,05,313.00
Total Net Profit of 3 Years Rs. 1,21,80,15,965.00

8. Prescribed CSR Expenditure:

Average Net Profit of 3 Years Rs. 40,60,05,322.00
2 percent of the Average Net Profit to given as CS| Rs. 81,20,106.00

9. Details of CSR spent for the financial year:
(a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 62,35,000
(b)  Amount spent in addition: Rs. 4,894 (During the Current Financial year, Company has

spent Rs. 81,25,000 on CSR Activities as against the required Amount of Rs. 81,20,106 resulting
in a excess of Rs. 4,894).
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(c) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount Total amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund
Spent for CSR Account as per Section 135(6) of specified under Schedule VII as per
the the Act second proviso to Section 135(5) of
Financial the Act
Year. (in Rs.)
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of transfer
transfer the Fund
62,35,000 18,90,000 04/04/2025 | Neelanjay NA NA NA
Pathshala

(d)  Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial Year:

1 |2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
SI. | Name Item Local | Location| Project | Amount | Amount | Amount Mode of | Mode of
No.| of the from Area | of the duration | allocated | spent in th{ transferred to | Impleme Implementation
Project the List | (Yes/ | project For current Unspent ntation — - Through
activities No) the Financial | CSR Account | Direct (Yes | Implementing
Schedule project Year for The /No) Agency
VII to (in Rs) (in Rs) project as per (Name and
the Act Section 135(6 CSR
(in Rs) Registration
Number)
1 | Neelanjay | Education| Yes Mumbai | 1 yrs  [42,49,696.5| 19,16,087 | 18,90,000 No Nutrica
Pathshala Foundation &
CSR00069546

(e)  Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the Financial Year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SL. | Name of the | Item Local | Location of Amount Mode Mode of Implementation —
No. | Project from area the spent for of Through

the List of (Yes/ | project the Implem | Implementing Agency

act No) project entation

activities (in Rs.) -

in Schedule Direct

VII to (Yes/N

the Act 0)

State District Name CSR
registration
number

1 Project Education No Uttar Noida | 4,43,609.5 No Nutrica CSR00069546
Neelanjay Pradesh Foundation
Pathshala
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2 Donation to | Gender No Uttar Noida | 6,41.809.5 No Nutrica CSR00069546
underprivile | equality and Pradesh Foundation
ged women | empowering
and widows | women
3 Treatment Health care No Uttar Noida | 15,05.559.5 | No Nutrica CSR00069546
Cost of Pradesh Foundation
Cancer
Patient and
RO
Installation
at Sport
Complex
4 Project BN | Environmental | No Uttar Noida | 7,61,559.5 No Nutrica CSR00069546
Upvan sustainability, Pradesh Foundation

(f) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — Rs. 9,66,375
(2) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - 0
(h) Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year - Rs. 81,20,106

(i) Excess amount for set off, if any:
SI. No | Particulars Amount (In Rs.)
i. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as 81,20,106.00
per Section 135(5)
il. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 81,25,000.00
iil. Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(i1)-(1)] 4,894.00
iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmed| -
activities of the previous Financial Years, if any
V. Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial 1=
Years [(iii)-(iv)]

10.  Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:

(a)
S Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred | Amount Deficiency,
No. | Financial | transferred | Amount Spent in | to a Fund as specifig remaining | if any
Year(s) |toUnspent |in Unspent | the under Schedule VII | be spent

CSR CSR Financial | per second succeeding

Account Account Year provision to sub- | Financial

under sub- | under sub- | (in Rs) | section (5) of sectio] Years

section (6) | section (6) 135, (in Rs)

of section of section if any

135 (in Rs.) | 135 (in Rs.)

NIL

SRR RN S
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects for the preceding
financial year(s):

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
SI. | Project | Name | Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of
No. [ ID the Year in duration | Amount | spenton | Amount the project
Project | which allocated | The spent at the | Completed/
the project the project | end of Ongoing
was project | In The Reporting
commenced Rs.) reporting | Financial
Financial | Year (in Rs.)
Year
(in Rs)
NIL

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the Financial Year: NA

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b)  The amount of CSR spent on creation or acquisition of capital assets.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital assets are registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (Including complete

address and location of the capital asset)
Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net ‘profit’ as
per Section 135(5) - NA.

11.  In case the company has failed to spend the two percent, of the average net profit of
the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for
not spending the amount in its Board Report: NA

12. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and the Policy of the
Company: Implementation of CSR activities is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013.

or And on Behalf of th

Chintan Ajaykumar Shah
Chairman - CSR Committee
DIN- 05257050

Anubhav Agarwal
Member — CSR Committee
DIN- 02809290
Date: 30/07/2025
Place: New Delhi
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

187. Second Floor, Pocket-17. Sector-24, Rohini, Near Best Mega Mall, Delhi - 110085
Tel.: +91 22 2894 0483 Visit us : www.mehta-mehta.com

AUTHORISED AGENTS FOR TRADEMARK, COPYRIGHT AND PATENT

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2025
{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

217, Adani, Inspire-BKC, Situated G Block BKC Main Road,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai, Mumbai. Maharashtra, India, 400051

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED (hereinafter called "the
Company"). The Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conduct, statutory compliance and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company. its
officers, agents, and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
10 the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year that ended on March 31, 2025, according 10 the

provisions of:
(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA) and the rules made there under (not
applicable to the Company during the period under review);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent applicable to the company;
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act"): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (not applicable to the Company, during the period
under review);

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (not applicable to the Company during the period under
review);

[

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
~ 2015 (not applicable to the Company during the period under review);

3.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the company during the period
under review);

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (not applicable to the Company during the period under
review);

o} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (not applicable to the Company during the period under
review);

6.  The Securitics and Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients (not applicable
to the Company during the period under review); '

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021 (not applicable to the Company during the period under review);

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(not applicable to the Company during the period under review);

We have examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc,
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We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of the Executive
Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and is in compliance with the
provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standards, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation

at the meeting.

Board / Committee decisions were carried through the requisite majority while the dissenting members’
views, if any, were captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules.
regulations, and guidelines. '

We further report that during the audit period, the Company had the following specific events/actions
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above-referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.:

1. Company has made the following allotments in the financial year 2024-25:

e  On July 6,2024, the Company has allotted 58,997 (Fifty-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety
Seven) Equity Shares at an issue price of Rs. 140 (Rupees One Hundred Forty only) each
comprising Face Value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each at a premium of Rs. 130 (Rupees
One Hundred and Thirty Only) each to Wave Edible Oils Limited.

e  On August 18,2024, the Company has allotted 11,37,812 (Eleven Lakh Thirty Seven Thousand
Eight Hundred Twelve) Equity Shares at an issue price of Rs. 140 (Rupees One Hundred Forty
only) each comprising Face Value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each and premium of Rs. 130
(Rupees One Hundred Thirty Only) each to Wave Edible Oils Limited

e  On August 23,2024, the Company has allotted of 5,98,303 (Five Lakh Ninety Eight Thousand
Three Hundred and Three) Equity Shares at an issue price of Rs. 140 (Rupees One Hundred
Forty only) each comprising Face Value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each and premium of Rs.
130 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty Only) each to Wave Edible Oils Limited

o On September 10,2024 the Company has allotted of 5,99,285 (Five Lakh Ninety Nine
Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty Five) Equity Shares at an issue price of Rs. 140 (Rupees
One Hundred Forty only) each comprising Face Value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each and
premium of Rs. 130 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty Only) each to Wave Edible Oils Limited
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On Septémber 20,2024 the Company has allotted of 15,28,133 (Fifteen Lakh Twenty Eight
Thousand One Hundred and Thirty Three) Equity Shares at an issue price of Rs. 140 (Rupees
One Hundred Forty only) each comprising Face Value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each and
the premium of Rs. 130 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty Only) each to Wave Edible Oils Limited

On March 13,2025 the Company has allotted 1,00,89,883 (One crore Eighty-nine thousand
Eight Hundred and Eighty-Three) Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each upon conversion
of 0% compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS).

On March 29, 2025 the Company has allotted 5,87,29,209 (Five Crore Eighty-Seven Lakh
Twenty-Nine Thousand Two Hundred Nine Only) fully paid-up equity shares of face value
INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each at an issue price of INR 10/- per share (Rupees Ten Only)-

For cash aggregating to INR 36,38,79,650/- (Rupees Thirty-Six Crore Thirty-Eight Lakh
Seventy-Nine Thousand Six Hundred Fifty only) and

Pursuant to conversion of unsecured loan into equity aggregating to INR 22,34,12,440 /-
(Rupees Twenty-Two Crore Thirty-Four Lakhs Twelve Thousand Four Hundred Forty

only)

The board of director in its meeting held on September 5, 2024, approved change in object and
alteration of object clause as-

Alteration in the Clause I11 (A) [Main Object] of the Memorandum of Association (MOA) by
adding/inserting sub-clause No. 4,5,6 and 7 after existing sub-clause No. 3.

The board of director in its meeting held on December 6, 2024, approved shifting of the
registered office of the company from the National Capital Territory of Delhi to the state of
Maharashtra w.e.f. December 31 ,2024.

There shareholders in its Extra- ordinary General meeting held on March 10,2025 approve the
increase in authorised share capital and alteration in capital clause.

The Capital Clause (Clause 5th) of the Memorandum of Association of the Company is
substituted with the following Clause 5th.

“5th» The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR 1,46,90,00,000/- (Rupees One
Hundred Forty-Six crore and Ninety Lakh only) comprising of INR 1,35,90,00,000/-
(Rupees One hundred Thirty-Five Crore and Ninety Lakh only) Equity Share Capital
divided into 13,59,00,000 (Thirteen Crore Fifty-Nine Lakh) Equity Shares of INR 10/-
(Rupees Ten only) each and INR 11,00,00,000 (Rupees Eleven Crore only) Preference
Share Capital divided into 1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten Lacs) Preference Shares of INR
10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

The board of director in its meeting held on December 24 ,2024, approved to increase in
remuneration of Mr. Anubhav Agarwal, managing director of the company from Z15,00,000 to
750,00,000 per annum, effective from January 1%, 2025.
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For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code P1996MHO007500)

T v’
wd
CS Nayan Handa\\ <

Partner *
FCS No: 11993 Place: Delhi UDIN: F011993G0008%96140
CP No.: 18686 Date: July 30,2025

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'ANNEXURE A'
and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A

To,

The Members,

B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

217, Adani, Inspire-BKC, Situated G Block BKC Main Road,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),

Mumbai, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400051

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1)

2)

3)

4)

6)

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done
on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules, and regulations and the happening of events, etc..

The compliance of the provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, and standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on a
test basis.

As regard the books, papers, forms, reports and returns filed by the Company under the provisions
referred in Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3, the adherence and compliance to the
requirements of the said regulations is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to checking the execution and timeliness of the filing of various forms, reports, returns, and
documents that need to be filed by the Company with various authorities under the said regulations.
We have not verified the correctness and coverage of the contents of such forms, reports, returns
and documents.
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7) The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
 theefficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Mehta &Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code P1996MHO007500)

CS Nayan Handa
~ Partner

FCS No: 11993 Place: Delhi UDIN: F011993G000896140
CP No.: 18686 Date: July 30,2025

Page 7of 7



JSMG & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Ph. 9456942089,
Email-info.jsmgassociates@gmail.com

C- 101,01d DLF Colony,Gurugram- 122001

Independent Auditor’s Report

To, )

The Members of

B. N. Agritech Limited

217, Adani, Inspire-BKC, Situated G Block BKC Main Road, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra(East), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400051

[CIN: U0O1403DL2011PLC301 179]

- OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of B. N. Agritech Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31t March 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the State of Affairs of the company as at March 31, 2025

b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for
the period ended on that date

c) In the case of Statement of Changes in Equity of the Changes in Equity

_and

d) In the case of cash flow statement, for the cash flows for the year ended on that date




BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 20 13 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

" KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include
. the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard, as for the year ended March 31, 2025. The other
information has not yet been prepared and not yet approved by Board of Directors.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including




other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
" fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so,

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Further, as per Proviso 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the company is required to
use such accounting software which has features of recording audit trail (edit log) facility for all
transactions and subsequently each change made in the books of accounts. Accordingly, the terms
‘all transactions recorded in the software’ would refer to all transactions that result in changes to
the books of accounts. However, such software cannot be disabled or tampered with throughout
the year.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control s




(b) Obtain an.understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)() of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonable ness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures i the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opmion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. Evaluate the overall
presentation, structure and content of the Ind As financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the IND AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—

(e

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

%\&




Further, Rule 11(g) casts responsibility on the auditor to report on the accounting software
used by the company having features of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and enabling of
audit trail for all transaction which result in change to books of accounts, as envisaged under
section 2(13) of the Act and Rule 3 of Account Rules, 2014.

The auditor is also required to ensure the following aspects: -

e The audit trail feature is configurable (i.e. if it can be disabled or tampered with)

e The audit trail feature is enabled/ operated throughout the year.

e All the transactions recorded in the software are covered in the audit trail feature.

e« The audit trail should be preserved as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

c)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of the Section 133 of the Companies
Ac, 2013(“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 except
disclosure requirements prescribed in Schedule-lll of the Act in respect of ageing
disclosure of trade payables and trade receivables.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in ‘Annexure B’.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16), In
our opinion and according to..the. _information and explanations given to us, the




h)

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not
in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has only case pending against it the details of which are disclosed in
Note No 46 by the company where the compensation sought by the plaintiff is 5
Crores. As per the management this would not have any significant financial impact
as the suit is non-maintainable;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities. identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons Or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

(d) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come




across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. Also, the
company has preserved the audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

For M/s J S M G & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. - 025006C) =

CA. Shruti Goyal DAL wjp
Partner k = \,
M. No.: 428276 }’\ A
UDIN: 25428276BMKTIL9114 Vi%

Place: Gurugram
Dated: 19.06.2025




Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the IND AS financial statements of BN
Agritech limited for the year ended 31° March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report of even date)

We report that:

1.

(a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, Property, Plant and
Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed
in the financial statementsare held in the name of the company, except the

following: -

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued
its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted
at reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No
discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as
compared to book records.

(a) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
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of security of current assets during any point of time of the year.

(b) The monthly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks
or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the
Company in respect of following:

A3 por A gl Reason of
Particulars Month Books (In Statement difference
Crore) (In Crore)
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, 30'23'2224 484.13 484.13 N.A.
W.L.P., Stores & Spares) Stite{:':ent]
Book Debts 469.68 469.68 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, |31-05-2024| 518.50 518.50 N.A.
W.LP., Stores & Spares) (Stock
Statement)
Book Debts 491.95 491.95 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, 30-06-2024 560.09 560.09 N.A.
W.I.P., Stores & Spares) (Stock
Statement)
Book Debts 508.96 508.96 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, 31-07-2024 562.35 562.35 N.A.
W.L.P., Stores & Spares) (Stock
Statement)
Book Debts 521.04 521.04 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, 31-08-2024 610.47 610.47 N.A.
W.L.P., Stores & Spares) (Stock
Statement)
Book Debts 522.47 522.47 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, | 30-09-2024 668.60 668.60 N.A.
W.L.P., Stores & Spares) (Stock
. Statement)
Book Debts 408.49 408.49 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, 31-10-2024 724.90 724.90 N.A.
W.1.P., Stores & Spares) (Stock
Statement)
Book Debts 462.69 462.69 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, 30-11-2024 821.77 821.77 N.A.
W.1.P., Stores & Spares) (Stock
Statement)
Book Debts 485.41 485.41 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material, 31-12-2024
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, (Stock 878.25 878.25 N.A.
W.I.P., Stores & Spares) Statement)

b




Book Debts 520.30 520.30 N.A.

All Stock (Raw Material,

Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, 31-01-2025 861.23 861.23 N.A.
W.IL.P., Stores & Spares) (Stock
Statement)
Book Debts 598.16 598.16 N.A.
All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, | 29-02-2025 834.37 834.37 N.A.
W.I.P., Stores & Spares) (Stock
Statement)
Book Debts 606.25 606.25 N.A.

All Stock (Raw Material,
Chemicals, Fuel, Packing, 951.60 951.60 N.A.

W.L.P., Stores & Spares) 25;22;?:225

Statement)
Book Debts 617.53 617.53 N.A.

a) During the year the company has not made investments in, nor provided
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the
grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided
are not prima facie prejudicial to the company’s interest;

c¢) There is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest and therefore we are unable to comment on the regularity of
repayment of principal & payment of interest.

d) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule,
we are unable to comment whether the amount is overdue or not.

e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during
the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties except following:

f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has not given

-,




_10.

any loans, investments, guarantees etc.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of
cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and we are of the opinion that prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, value
added tax and cess and any other statutory dues to appropriate authority have generally
been regularly deposited during the year by the Company. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service
tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and Cess and other statutory dues
were in arrears, as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, as at March 31, 2025, there are no dues of Income Tax Goods
and Service Tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value
added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute other than given
below:

Name of Statute Nature of Dues | From  where | Period to | Amount
dispute is | which the | involved (Rs.)
pending amount relates
--- NIL ---

According to the information and explanations given by the management, no
transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management,
the company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender;




(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, the Company has utilized the money obtained by way of
term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained,
except for:

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized
for long term purposes.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures,

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate

companies.

11. (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) The company has made following preferential allotment / private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year:

. = = - iNo of : : : Share : . :
Name of il = Face | _ .| Issue ., 4+ | Premium | Total
! ; Category Share .. | Premium | _ Capital | e
_:_Alloteea _ Issued _Va_llfﬁé:: e | Price (In Cr) (InCr) | (InCr)

Wave

Edible Preferential

Oils Allotment | °222°30  10.00| 132.00 |142.00 3.92 51.78 55.70

Limited

Wave

Edible .

Oils Rightlesue | 11767590 4500 | 000 | 10000 11.77 0.00 11.77

Limited

Growth Right Issue

Harvest

Industries 18341244 1500| 000 | 10.00 18.34 0.00 18.34

Pvt Ltd.

Anubhav | Right Issue

Agarwal 28620375 1900| 0.00 | 10.00 | 28.62 0.00 28.62
Total 62651739 62.65 51.78 | 114.43

12. (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management,

no fraud by the company or any

reported during the year;

fraud on the company has been noticed or




13.

0T

15.

16.

i 5N

18.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, no whistle-blower complaints had been received by the
company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, this clause is not applicable
on the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements,

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. We have
considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion
during the year the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him except the company has converted its
long-term borrowings (unsecured loan) of Rs. 22,34,12,440/- in to Equity Share Capital by
issuing 2,23,41,244 Equity shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each issued at a Face Value of
Rs. 10/- each.

L ~ No.of | ' e ' Share | '
Mamest | o e i | Do oy | P | Tel
i Issued : : (In Cr) - : : :

Growth
Harvest
Hdustries Pvt | 1292 | 1000 .00 10.00 18.34 0.00 18.34
Ltd.
Anubhav
Agarwal H00G000 10.00 0.00 10.00 4.00 0.00 4.00
Total 2,23,41,244 22.34 0.00 22.34

(a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2
of 1934).

(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the

/ /%Lﬂﬁj—;




19,

20.

21,

22,

financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the information obtained from the management and audit procedures
performed and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;

Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 is applicable on the
company and the expenditure on CSR has been duly incurred by the company
as per following details:

Average 3 preceding years’ Net Profit (in Lacs) Rs. 4060.05
CSR amount (2% of Average Net Profit) (in Lacs) Rs. 81.20
Amount contributed during the year (in Lacs) Rs. 81.25
Amount acttially spent during the year (in Lacs) Rs. 62.35

Remaining unspent amount as on 31.03.25 of Rs. 18.90 Lacs contributed for
the ongoing project “Neelanjay Pathshala” has been returned by “Nutrica
Foundation” and duly deposited into a special bank account “Unspent CSR
Account” in accordance with applicable CSR Provisions.

The company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statements.

For M/s J S M G & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. - 025006C)

M. No.: 428276

CA. Shruti Goyal . /2
Partner . .. )’QW \{\@

UDIN: 25428276BMKTIL9114

Place: Gurugram
Dated: 19.06.2025




Annexure-‘B’

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

* Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of B.N. Agritech Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

" The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies. Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
. the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

b




exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

* We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

For M/s J S M G & Associates,
" Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. - 025006C)

CA. Shruti Goyal ' -~ \ \)"\)*)‘j;/

Partner : 4 )
M. No.: 428276 £> T /
UDIN: 25428276BMKTIL9114

Place: Gurugram
Dated: 19.06.2025




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - U01403MH2011PLC448238

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR lakhs. unfess otherwise siated)

Particulars Note As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
ASSETS <
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 16,860 97 7.605 94 8.408.42
Capital work=in-progress 4 - 6,054 42 1.741.14
Intangible assets 5 138.05 56.77 1.53
Intangible assets under development 5 - 24.04
Right of Use Assets 6 767.83 659,12 645 66
Financial assets
(1) Investments 7 0.05 0.05 -
(11) Other financial assets 8 1,429.15 733.02 12581
Deferred tax assets (net) 36 34631 209.65 121 88
Total non-current assets 19,542.36 15,343.00 11,044.43
Current assets
Inventories 9 03,805.20 51,171.56 40,178.20
Financial assets
(1) Investments 10 31468 103,07 -
(i1) Trade receivables 11 58,369 93 46,476 85 3567498
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 42993 13.01 428.00
(1v) Other bank balances 13 1.286.36 330.50 510.08
- Loans = & =
(v} Loans - -
(vi) Other financial assets 14 457.88 532.81 22290
Current Tax Assets (Net) - - "
Other current assets 15 5,362.09 4994 18 3,224 30
Total current assets 1,60,026.07 1,03,621.98 80,238.45
TOTAL ASSETS 1,79,568.42 1,18,964.98 91,282.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 9.268 40 1,994 24 1.994 24
Instruments entirely equity in nature 17 - 1,008.99 B
Other equity 18 46,060 67 32.938.35 18,557.79
Total equity 55,329.07 3594158 20,552.02
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities ‘
(1) Borrowings 20 2,868 24 184404 290327
(i1} Lease Liabilities 6 73664 644 80 590,82 ‘
Provisions 19 148 92 71.65 39.50 |
Other non-current liabilities ¥ =
Total non-current liabilities 3,753.80 2,560.49 3,533.58
|
\
|

For B. N. Agritech Lt For B. N, Agritech fNawcsA——"




Current liabilities
Financial habilities
(1) Borrowings
(11) Lease liabilities
(1) Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
enterprises and small enterprises

(1v) Other financial habilities
Provisions
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Other current liabilitics
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Material accounting policies & Significant Judgements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s JS M G & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 025006C

CA. Shruti Goyal
Partner
Membership No. 428276

Place; Gurugram
Date: June 19,2025

UDSIN— 25428276 BmETILI Y

21

22

23

26
24

23

57.333.89 52,865.69 58.860.57
116.06 86.70 97.37
58.812.05 23.437.71 3.846.71
1.607 88 1,669.79 2,703 58
64,71 29.46 2130
1.680.86 1,228.25 695 .64
§70.10 1.145.32 966.10
1,20,485.56 80,462.92 67,197.28
1,24,239.36 83.023.40 70,730.86
1,79,568.42 1,18,964.98 91,282.88

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

'n |

B B.N .Krltech Limited
A t)ul ch

(Whole Time Director)
DIN - 02149270
(New Delhi)

Place: New Delhu
Date: June 19,2025

For B. N, Ag;i

Chin seﬁji?gflﬂhuﬁaf‘ an
(Director)

DIN 05257050
(New Delhi)

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19,2025




BN AGRITECH LINMITED

CIN No - UDI403MH201 1 PLC 448238

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are n INR fakhy. unless otherwise shated)

” >
. ik For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from aperations 27 6.27979 26 36663790
Other imcome 28 540 79 11275
Total income (1) 6.28,520.05 3.66,750.65
Expenses
Cost of Matenal Consumed 291a) 614,767 43 362,896 18
Changes in imventones of fimshed goods, work-in-progress and waded goods 20 (19.213.36) 113, 756.87)
Employee benefit expenses 30 305333 1.64229
Finance costs 3 852243 555509
Depreciation and amortisation expenses K 2,200 46 133573
Uther expenses 33 7.160.32 321074
Total expenses (11) 6,16,500,12 3.60,883.16
Exceptional item-Loss (111) 35 95.07 463
Profit before tax (IV=1-11-111) 11,924.87 5.862.86
Tax expense: 36
Current tax
1) for current year 3007 58 1564 49
1y Adjustment of tax relating to earlier peniods 924 34 196 68
) Deferred tax expense/(credit) 1133 37) (87 83)
Total 1ax expense (V) 3,798.55 1.673.31
Profit for the vear (Vi= 1V-V) 8.126.32 4,189.55
Other comprehensive income: (V1) 37
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
(1) Re-measurement gan/(loss ) on defined benefit plans. 11307 031
snsated absences expense (OCT)
(1) Income tax relating 1o items that will not be re-classified to profit and loss 329 (008
Other comprehensive income for the year (9.78) 0.23
Total comprehensive profit for the year (VI+VI) 8,116.54 4,189.78
Earnings per share (Face value of INR 10 cach): 34
Basic (in INR) 3502 2101
Diluted iin INR) 24 80 1879
Matenal accounting policies & Sigmficant Judgements 23
The accompanying noles are an mtegral part of these financial stalements
As per our repont of even date antached
For M/s J S M G & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants B.N. Agritech Limited
Firm Registration No. 025006¢ Agritecn

ari
—
—

L

CA. Shruti Goyal Ajay Kumar Agarwal Chintan Ajay Kumar Shah
Partner (Whole Time Director) (Director)

Membership No 428276 DIN 02149270 DIN (5257050

Place Gurugram Place: New Dellu Place: New Delln

Date June 19,2025 Date June 192023 Date. June 19.2025

UDIM — 2542 @ 2F6BMKCTLLA (1Y




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - U01403MH2011PLC448238

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Lease equalisation expenses/(reversal)
Interest expenses other than interest on lease liabilities
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest income
Expenses for provision of Gratuity and Leave Encashment
Interest on security deposits
Gain on sale of mutual fund
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange trade payables
Loss/{Gain) on Financial instrument measured at FVTPL
Impairment on Trade Receivables
Gain on sale of property. plant and equipment
Gain on Foreign Exchange

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Adjustments:

Decrease/(increase) in Other current and non current financial assets
Increase in other current and non current assets
Increase/(decrease) in Inventories

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade payvables

Increase / (decrease) in provisions

Decrease in other {inancial liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in other current and non current liabilities
Cash flow generated from operating activities

Income taxes paid (net)

Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Payment made for purchase of property. plant & equipments

(including capital work-in-progress, capital creditors and capital advances)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of mutual funds

Investment in Nutrica Foundation

Investment in Mutual Funds/ Debentures (Net)

Interest received from fixed deposit and other interest income

Maturity/ (investment) in bank deposits other than cash and cash equivalents
Net cash flow generated from/ (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities

Interest paid

Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings

)

11.924.87 5.862.86
2,209.46 1.335.73
8,455.10 5,491.02

67.83 64.07
(152.32) (86.24)
107.39 41.05
(2.34) (2.16)
(7.09) =
(201.71) -
199,78 (3.07)
440.30 (19.37)
(2.40) 4.63
23,038.86 12,688.53
(623.27) (914.97)
(367.91) (1.769.87)
(42.633.64) (10.993.36)
(12,333.38) (10.782.51)
35,576.06 19.591.00
(7.94) (0.44)
(256.37) (1,033.79)
(275.22) 179.22
2,117.20 6,963.81

(3.479.31) (1,228.55)

(1,362.10) 5,735.26

(5.332.83) (5.202.51)

9.21 398.33
10.16
- (0.05)
{220.00) (100.00)
152.32 86.24
(955.86) 179.58
(6,337.01) (4,638.41)
{192.21) (160.48)
(8.454.37) (5.491.02)
2.802.00 36.05
(1,270.55) (1,090.34)
v’




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - U01403MH2011PLC448238

Statement of cash flows for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) borrowings (net) 3.960.21 (4.996.83)
Proceeds from loans - .
Payvment for share issue exenses (93.51)

Proceeds from issue of shares 11.364.46 10,190.78
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) 8.116.04 (1,511.84)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 416.93 (414.99)
cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13.01 428.00
cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 429.93 13.00
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12)

Bank Balance:

- cash on hand 8.89 3.59
- in current accounts 10.79 1.68
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 401.70 -
Custom Wallet 8.55 7.74
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 429.93 13.01

Notes:

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as set out on Indian Accounting Standard -7 on "Statement on cash

Flows".

Material accounting policies & Significant Judgements

the accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s J S M G & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 025006C -

CA., Shruti Goyal
Partner W ”
Membership No. 428276 “a :

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 19.2025

UDIM- 28U 2 BLFEBMETILANY

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

B.N. Agritech Limited

| A

Dire r/Auth. Sian
Ajay Kumar Agarwal
(Whole Time Director)
DIN : 02149270

(Director)
DIN : 05257050

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19,2025

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19.2025

f
Ctor/Auth. Siarr
Chintan Ajay Kumar Shah



B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UD1403MH20 11 PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Al amonnrs are in INR lakks, unless othenvise siaed)

4 Praperiy, plani and eguipment

Plant and Furninire and Office

a. Particulars e ildi
Exquipment Fixtures Eiquipasenis Computers Vehicles Freehold Land Building Total

Gross carrying value
Deemed cost as at April 01, 2023+ 4.607.78 ITE%0 18.18 19.93 41843 2,006.12 96208 B.408.42
Additions iy 33328 3435 J3az 43.59 066 16232 B4 79
Dnsposals# 54554 1423 - - - - 3277 612.53
As al March 31, 2024 4,239.51 694,95 51.53 73215 462.02 1006,78 1,071.63 8,060,685
Additions 8,758.58 30524 17.51 53.03 36390 104.33 1,712.61 11,315.20
Dhsposals# 20.62 489 216 16 89 44.55
As at 31 March 2025 1297747 995.31 04 124.12 809.03 211111 2,784.24 19,871,312
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2023*% - - - - - - - -
Charge for the year T76.20 149.36 1769 29 46 14097 - RO 1,204.31
[nsposals# 19755 290 - - - - ERE] 20957
As at March 31, 2024 578.65 140.46 17.69 1946 140.97 - 87.51 994,74
Charge for the year 151362 17037 LE6T 4035 161,149 - 149.15 2.053.35
Disposals 2062 489 216 10108 37T
As at March 31, 2025 2,071.65 305,95 3o 36 67.65 292.09 - 230,06 3,010.35
Net carrying value
As ut April 01, 2023 4.607.78 375.90 18.18 19.93 418.43 2. 12 961.08 8.408.42
As at March 31, 2024 3,660.86 554.49 34.85 43.79 311.05 2,006,758 984.12 7.605.94
As at March 31, 2025 10,905,582 689,36 33069 56,47 51695 L1111 2.547.57 16,860.97

*Information regarding Gross carrying value and accumulated depreciation under previous GAAP are as under:

Particulars EZ:T;:::' F":i':::smd Eq.g:::n“ Computers Vehicles Building F:::;Id Total
As at April 01, 2023
Gross carrying value as per previous GAAP 797035 62785 316l 5024 47977 200612 1,421 86 2.506 79
Accumnulated depreciaton 336257 25194 13.42 3930 6134 - 459.78 4,188 38
Net carrying value Deemed cost 4.607.78 375.90 18.18 19.93 418.43 21,006.12 062.08 8,408.42

The Company has elected Ind AS 101 exemption w continue with the carrying value for all of its Propeny, Plant and Equipment as its deerned cost as at the date of transition Refer note 44 for first
nme adoprion

*On transimon 1o IND AS (1e, April 01, 2023). the Company has elected to continue wath the carrying value of all Propertv. plant and equipment measured as per previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of Propenty, plant and equipment.

Certan Property plant and equipements are pleadged as secunty agiants borrowing by the company, the details related 1o which have been discnbed in note 22 and 23 of borrowings.

Vehicle loans have been obtained from Banks with hypothecaton of vehicle as primary secunty

,uESliFe{:/tgr‘;;u ~Sign..

- [ \ rerid b
- N, f\g{ilecfi

DirectorfAlith.”Sigr




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN Na - U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes (o financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
dAl amenmis are in INR lakhs, unless athenvise stared)

b, Capital work-in-progress

Particulars Amount
Gross carrying value

As at April 01, 2023 1,741,104
Addimons 431328
Less: Capitalised durning the year .
As at March 31, 2024 6,054.42
Additions 309705
Less: Capitahised dunng the year 9151 46

As at March 31, 2025

Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2025

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Total

Amount in CWIP for a period of

More than 3
years

Total

6,054 42

Less than 1 year
Projects in progress -
Projects temporanly suspended -
Total =
As at March 31, 2024

Less than 1 year
Progects i progress 431328
Projects temporarly suspended 2
Taotal 431328

6,054 42

As at April 01, 2023

Less than 1 year

Amount in CWIP for a period of

More than 3
years

Total

174114

174114

Projects in progress T1LTa104
Projects temporanly suspended -
Total 1741 14
Note:

There are no such project under capital work-in-progress, whose completion i1s overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its anginal plan/revised plan,

e

Intangible assets

Particulars Softwares Total
Gross canrying value

Deemed cost as at April 01, 2023 1.53 1.53
Additions 64 40 Ol 40
[hsposals = "
As at March 31, 2024 01923 01.93
Additions 96.09 9609
Dhsposals 26.60 2660
As at March 31, 2025 131.43 131.43
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2023 i =
Charge for the year 516 il
Disposalsi " "
As at March 31, 2024 5.6 516
Charge for the year 1481 14 &)
Dngposalsd 26.60 26.60
As at March 31, 2025 16.62) (6.62)
Net carrving value

As at April 01, 2023 1.53 1.53
As at March 31, 2024 56.77 56.77
As at March 31, 2025 138,05 135.05

l. Agritech Ltd,




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UDT403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to financial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2025
FAN amounss are in INR lakhs, unless oitherwise siated)

b. I gible Assets under dev

Particulars Amount

Gross carrying value

As at April 01, 2023 &
Addimons 24.04
Less: Capitalised during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 24.04
Addinons -
Less: Capitalised duning the year 2404
As at March 31, 2025 %

Intangible assets under development includes Software development and website development expenditure.

| gible assets under devel ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025
Amount in IAUD for a period of
Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More thizn 3 e
years
Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - %
Total = = e i %
As at March 31, 2024
Amount in IAUD for a period of
Total
Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 vears PAore thin 3 i
Years
Projects in progress 24.04 - = - 24.04
Projects temporanly suspended - > - al =
Total 14.04 - - - 2404
As al April 01, 2023
Amount in IAUD for a period of
™M than 3 Total
Lass than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years e e
VEAIS
Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - & x - 5
Tatal o - = = .

Note:
There are no such projects, whose complenon is overdue or has excesded its cost compared to its onginal/revised plan,

b
y

rec

—




BN, AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UDI403MH201 1 PLCHS 238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amownts are s INK [akhs, unless otherwise sfaied)

6 Right of use assets

Particulars Buildings Vehicles Road Total

Gross carrying value

Balance at April 01, 2023 77483 - - T74.83
Additions - 677 132,95 13972
Disposals = o & i

As at March 31, 2024 T74.83 6.77 13295 914.55
Addinons 22292 T - 250,01
Dispesals - - - F

As at March 31, 2025 997.75 33.86 13295 1,164,585

Aceumulated depreciation

Balance at April 01, 2023 129.17 - - 12917
Charge for the vear 122.28 {10 388 12626
Dnsposals - Z = F
As at March 31, 2024 151,45 010 358 255.43
Charge for the vear 124 84 381 665 141.30
Disposals = = i b
As at March 31, 2025 380.29 590 1052 396,72
Net carrying value =
Balance at April 01, 2023 645,66 - - G45.66
As at March 31, 2024 523.38 6,08 129.07 659,12
As at March 31, 2025 617.45 27.96 122.42 TaT.83
The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:
Particilire For the year emded For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on lease liabilities 6783 6407
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 141,30 126,26
Expense relating 1o shorl-1erm leases 102.89 5490
Impact on the statenvent of profit amd loss for the year 31201 245.22

The following is the movernent in lease liabilities during the year:

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance T3 49 GEE19
Additions 24559 139,72
Lease rentals pad (192.21) {14) 48)
Accretion of onerest 67 83 6k 07
Closing balance $52.70 T340
The following is the break-up of current and non=curvent lease liabiliti
Pasticiilis As at As at .M at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Non current lense liabilities 736,44 G4 Rib 540,82
Current lease habilities 1 L6 06 8670 47.37
Closing balance 8570 TIL4Y 658,19
Particulars Asal As al As at
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Maturity Analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one vear 187 84 147.72 154 8%
e 1o five years 77123 6,16 554,19
Maore than five vears TO 28 20563 243 K2
Total undiscounted Lease Liability 1.038.36 949,50 952.90
Note:

The company has lease contracts for various items of Buildings, vehicles and Road used in ifs operations. Leases of Buildings generally have lease terms between 3 and 9 years, leases of vehicles generally
have lease term ol 4-5 vears and leases of Road has term of 20 vears. The company has also certain leases with lease term of 12 manths or less or low value leases The company appliad the 'shori term lease'
recognition exemptions {or these leases.

' B. N. Agritech Ltd.

Direct /Auth, Sign.




BN, AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UG I403MH201 1 PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(AN amounts are in INR lakhs, uniess otherwive siated)

T Investments (Non-current)

Asat Asat As at
Particulars
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Investments at fair value through OCI

Unquoted equity instruments

500 (March 31, 2024: 500, April 01, 2023 Nil) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully pard up in Nutrica Foundation 0.05 0.05 “
0,05 05 =
0.05 0.05 -
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 005 0.05 -
Aggregate fair value of investments at cost - - G
Aggregate fair value of investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 0.08 0,05 =

8 Other financial assets (non-current)

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 01,2023

Particulars

At amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits - 309 25 10431 91,64

Deposits with banks having remainimg maturity of more than 12 months 1,119.90 628 71 34.16

Margin money deposit* - - 3
1,420.15 733.02 12581

9 lnventories

Particulars As al Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
Raw Materaal 50.731.42 27.001.28 30,074 .66
Work in progress 15,36 259.87 59308
By product 22292 446,66 26543
Fimished Goods - - -
n Hand 42,835 50 23.153.89 G03895
n transit - 30887 2046 08
93,805.20 S1L171.56 40,178.20
CC. WCDL, BGECL and GECL loans have been obtamed with hypothecaton of stocks and receivable as primary security
10 Investments (Current)
As al As at As at

Particulars
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Investments carried a1 fuir value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual funds - quoted

Aditya Birla Sun Life Banking & PSU Debt Fund 103.95 103.07 -
28,964 unus for INR 358 88 each (March 31, 2024 31,066 umits for INR 3317737 each) in Aditya Birla Sun Life Banking & PSU Debt Fund
Baroda BNP Paribas Manufacturing Fund - Regular 104.92 - -
11,99.930 units for INR 8.74 each (March 31, 2024 Nil) in Baroda BNP Paribas Manufacturing Fund - Regular
HDFC Short Term Debt Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 105 81 - -
3.37.937 units for INR 31.31 each (March 31, 2024: Nil) in HDFC Short Term Debt Fund - Regular Plan - Growth
34.68 103.07 -
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 314.68 103,07 -
Aggregate fair value of investments at fair value through Profit & Loss 314.68 103.07 -
11 Trade receivables
s As at As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Undisputed Trade recervables — considered good 5895274 46,619.37 3583086
Undisputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk = .
Undispured Trade Receivables — credst impaired - ” "
Total Trade Receivables 58,952.74 46,619.37 35,836.86
Impairment allowance {(allow for bad and doubiful debis)
Impairment loss allowance (58281) (142.51) (161 88)

58,369.93 46,476.85 35,674.98
Note:

a.  Refer note 42 for related parry balances
b.  Notrade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other recervable are due from firms or private companies
respectively in which any director 15 a partner, a director or a member.

Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 davs
d. OC WODL. BGECL and GECL loans have been abtained with hypothecation of stecks and
e Credit risk management regarding trade receivables has been described in nate 40

9. IN. Agritech Lt




BN AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UN1403MH2011PLC448238

Notes ta financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(AN amaunts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwize stated)

12 Cash and cash equivalents

Pacticidies Asal As ar As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
Cash on hand 5.89 159 1106
Balances with banks-
-l current accounts 10.79 168 268
-in deposit acecunt (with original maturity of less than 3 months)* 401,70 = 41426
Custom Wallet 8,55 774 -
420,93 13.01 428.00
*Bank depossts earn mterest at fixed rate based on respective deposit rates
*Deposits as at 31,03 2023 which are not seperable regards matunty peniod are classified as other bank balanees.
Includes Rs. 401.70 lakhs (31 March 2024: Nil ) on hen with banks.
13 Other bank balances
Faidindis Asoat As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Deposits with original maturity of more than three manths but less than twelve months® 1.286.36 330,50 510.08
1,246.36 330.50 510.08

*Bank deposits earn interest at fized rate based on respective deposit rates
*Depasits as at 31.03 2023 which are not seperable regards maturity period are classified as other bank balances
Includes rs. 1.286 36 lakhs (31 March 2024- Rs. 330.50 lakhs) on lien with banks

14 Other current financial assets

As at As a As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 01, 2023

Particulars

At umiortised cost
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 60.93 106,90 20061

Insurance Claim Receivable - 39833 -

(ithers 430.95 27.58 2229
457.88 532.81 222.90

During the year ended 31 March 2024, various fixed assets like furniture, fixtures & electrification, land and building. plant and machinery were destrayed on 6th June 2023 due ta Biparjoy evclone occured in
Gujarat, claim submitted to msurance company was INR 3 98 32,929

15 (nher current assets

As at As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024 April 01,2023

Particulars

Unsecared, considered good

Advance to supphers # 504934 2,662.96 200255
Advances to emplovees 0.l6 21.87 le7
Prepaid expenses 11679 8554 3896
Balance with government authenities 4,708 79 2,223.50 117412

5,362.09 4.994.18 3,224.50




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UTO109KA2Z020PTC 141274

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
AN amaunts are i INK Jakhs, waless oifenvise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

Particulars AFaL A3t

Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Equity share capital
Balance a1 the begnning of the reporting year 1,994.24 1,994 24
Issued during the vear 7274 16 -
Balance at the end of the reporting vear 9.268.40 1,994,24
(B) Instruments entirely equity in nature

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

Compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year

Issued during the vear

Converted during the vear

Balance at the end of the reporting year

1.008 99

(1,008 99}

1,008 99

1,008.99

(B) Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Particulars Tatal
Securities preminm Retained earnings
Balance as at April 1, 2023 854224 10,015.54 18,557.79
Securities premium on issue of shares 10,190.78 - 10,194,785
Profit for the vear 418955 4,189,535
Dividend pasd - & =
Issues Durmg the vear
Preference dividend i i S
Remeasurement gain on defmed benefit obligation 023 0.23
Balance as at March 31, 2024 18,733.03 14,205 33 32,938.35
Securities premium on issue of shares 509929 - 5,099,29
Payment for share issue expenses 93.5] - 93.51
Profit for the year - 8126032 8,126.32
Dividend paid “ & =
Preference dividend - p -
Remeasurement loss on defined benelit obligation (9.78) (9.78)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 23,738.830 21.321.86 46,060.67

Material accounting policies & Sugificant Judpements

The accompanying notes form an miezral part of the standalone financial

As per our report of even date asached

For M/sJ 8 M G & Associates
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration Mo, 025006C

CA. Shruti Goyal
Partner
Membership No. 428276

"

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 19,2025

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of
B.N. Agritech Limited

O. IN. Agritech Lt

Place: New Delhs
Date: June 19 2025

Chintan Ajay Kumar Shah

(Director)
DIN - 05257050

Place: New Delh;
Date: June 19,2025



BN AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - V0140302011 PLC 445238

Notes 1o financial ststements for the year ended March 31, 2028
(Al amownts are s INE lakhy, wnless otherwese stateddy

e

Share capital
a. Authorised share capital

Asat As at As mt Asat

Particalars Ind As Adjustment
Mavch 31, 2023 i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Equity Shares
135900 000 (March 31, 2024 3, 20000 (300) equity shares of INK 10 ¢ach [ERT IV - 13 590 () 3,200 0 3,200 (40
Preference shares
1,10,00.000 (March 31, 2024 1.10.00.000) s pubsory convertible ve preference shares of INR 11 cach J. 100 00 [N LR 1100 00 1400 00

14694000 - 1465940, 04) 4.500.00 3.300.00
Equity Shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Parti Asar Ind As Adjustment As As ot Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

92083982 (March 31, 2024 1.99.42_360) equiry shares of INR 10 each 9268 40 = 5268 40 1904 24 1,993 24

M - 936840 1.994.24 1.994.24
i) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the repartng year

Asat Asat As i
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 :EHHI‘NIJ
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

At the beginning of the year 1.9% 42 300 1.994 24 | 99,42 360 1954 24 | SR.15.645 1.881 86
Add lssue dunng the year 7.27 414622 7.274 16 - - 11,276,715 112 67
Outstanding at the end of the year 9,10.83,982 9,268.40 199,42 360 1.994,24 19942360 1,994.24

i) Terms and rights attached 1o equity shares
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having & par value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of Equity Shares s entitled 10 vne vote per share and ranks par passu In the event of |

eligible to recesve the remaning assets of the Company after distibution of all preferential amounts. in proportaon 1o thewr shareholding

the equity shareholders are

The company. pursusnt 1o the nght issues better of offer dated 16 63 2025 allotted equity shares up to 5 8729209 (Five Crore Esghty Seven Lakh Twenty Nue Thousand Two Hundred Nine Only) fully pasd-up equity shates of face
value INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each at an ssue price of INR 10 per share {Rupees Ten Oualy) for (1) cash aggregaung wo INKR 306,38 79 030/ (Rupees Thurty Six Crore Thany Eighit lakh Seventy Nime Thousand Six Hundred Fifty
onlyv)and (1) for conversion of unsecure loan mto equity agereganng o INR 22 14 12 440 - (Rupees Twenty Two Crore Thirty Four Lakhs Twelve Thousand Four Hundred Forty only)

i} Equity shares held by the holding company ‘entity having significant influence

As mt As at As ot
Particulars March 31,2028 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
No. of shares l Amount No. of shares I [ Amount No. of shares I Amount
NIL

iv) Details of aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid up pursusnt to contractis) without payment being received in cash during the period of five years immediately preceeding the balance sheet date.

Date of allotment Type of share No, of Shares Name of Allotiee
24022022 Equity Share 287 300 | Ay Rumar Agarwal
24022022 Equity Share 520 %50 | Anubhav Agarwa!

Girovwth Harvest

12200 Preterence Share ol 13 748 | Industres Privite
Lamuted

N i h

3101 2624 Prefesence Share 1941418 S P

Private Limined

SGSG Infra Rental

3k 01 2024 Prefer Sh 034TIT
il Private Limited

29.073 2025 ity Share A0 0 (00 | Annublsay Agarwal

Crowth Harvest
29035 2028 Equrty Share | B3 AL 284 | Industnes Private

Limted

[ Unaneted ._{ e - acite e ANiRiTe
iif—(_.t-\:;:‘._z_n‘.-.:‘-‘:s -*"rlll - ‘f% ;
Ty F1el £ -

W




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED
CIN No- U0T403MH2011 PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amownts are in INR lakhs, wniess atherwive stated)

29.03.2025 Equity Share 40,00,000 { Anubhav Agarwal
Growth Harvest
29.03.2025 Equity Share 1.83.41,244 | Industries Private

Limited




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - U0T403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CAll amounts are in INR lakhs, wnless otherwive siated)

v) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares in the Company

As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, iﬂ:ﬁldl - March 31, 2024 April 01, 2‘323
- o i i __ . e
No. of shares TATEIE IR No. of shares % holding in the class No. of shares holding in the
class class
Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal 64,356,935 6.97% 64.56.935.00 32.38% 64,56,935.00 32.33%
Mr. Anubhav Agarwal 3.81.60.500 41.17% 95.40.125.00 47.84% 95,40,125.00 47.84%
Basant Infracon Private Limited 21,05.000 2.27% 21,05.000.00 10.56% 21.05.000.00 10.56%
i GPL Housing Private Limited 1840000 1.99% 18,40.000.00 9.23% 18,40,000.00 9.23%
| Wave Edible Oils Limited 1,56.90,120 16.93% - 0.00% - ((H0%
i Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited 2.44.54.992 26.39% - 0.00% - 0.00%
| Toral 8,87,07.547 95.71% - 0.00% 1,99.42,0640 100.00%
‘ vi) Shareholding of promoters are disclosed as below:
I As at March 31, 2025
‘ Promoter Name No. of shares at % of Total Shares at  No. of shares at the end % of Total Shares at % change during
, the beginning of  beginning of the of the year end of period the year
‘ the year year
' Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal 64,56.935 32.38% 64.36.935 6.97% 25.41%
‘ Mr. Anubhav Agarwal 95,40,125 47.84% 3.81.60,500 41.17% -6.67%
I Ajay Kumar Agarwal (HUF) 100 0.00% 100 0.00% 0.00%
| Anubhav Agarwal (HUF) 100 0.00% 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Raj Kumar Verma 100 0.00% 100 0.00% 0.00%
Basant Infracon Private Limited 21,05,000 10.56% 21,05,000 2.27% -5.28%
GPL Housmg Private Limited 1 8,40,000 9.23% 18.40,000 1,999 =7.24%
Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited - 0.00% 2.44,54,992 26.39% 26.39%
BN Raj Infratech Private Limited - 0.00% 1941418 2.099% 2.09%
5.G.5.G. Infra Rental private Linuted - 0.00% 2034717 2.20% 2.20%
1,99,42,360 100.00% 7,69.93,862 83.07% -16.93%
As at March 31, 2024
Promoter Name No. of shares at % of Total Shares at  No. of shares at the end % of Total Shares at % change during
the beginning of  beginning of the of the year end of period the year
the vear year
Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal 64,56,935 32.38% 6456935 32.38% -
Mr. Anubhav Agarwal 95 40,125 47 84% 95 40,1235 47.84% -
Ajay Kumar Agarwal (HUF) 100 0.00% 100 0.00% -
Anubhav Agarwal (HUF) 100 0.00% 100 0.00% -
! Mr. Raj Kumar Verma 100 0.00% 100 0.00% -
Basant Infracon Private Limited 21,05,000 10.56% 21,055,000 10.56% -
GPL Housing Private Limited 1840000 9.23% 18.40,000 923% -
| 1,99,42,360 100.00% 1,99.,42,360 100.00% -
.
|
17  Instruments entirely equity in nature
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Nil (March 31, 2024: 1,00.89.883, 01 April 2023: Nil) (% compulsorily convertible preference
shares of Rs. 10 each - 1.008.99 -
- 1,008.99 -
i) Reconciliation of compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares sutstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 1,00,89 883 00 1,008.99 - =
Add: Issue during the vear - - 1.00,89.883 1.008.99
Less: Converted into equity shares during the vear 1.00.89.883.00 1,008.99
1 - -
Outstanding at the end of the vear - - 1,00,89,883
2. IN. Agritech L, _
/ %
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| B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED
CIN No - UD1403MH2011PLC448238
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amowntys are in INR lakhs, unless otherwive stated)

ii) Terms and rights attached to compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares
Dunng the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company had issued 1,00,89,883 Compulsonly Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of 210 cach, at a premium of 2101 per share, aggregating to

As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
No. of shares I Amount No. of shares I Amount No. of shares | Amount
Nil
' iv) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares in the Company
! As at As at As at
Vit March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
‘: % holding in the % holding in the
_ No. of shares class No. of shares %o holding in the class No. of shares class
i Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR
i 10 each fully paid
Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited - 0.00% 61,13,748 6{).59% - 0.00%
| B.N. Raj Infratech Private Limited £ 0.00% 1941418 19.24% = 0.00%
| 5.G.5.G. Infra Rental Private Limited - 0.00% 20.34.717 20.17% - 0.00%
- 0.00% 1,00,89,883 100.00% - 0.00%

%10,08,98,830, to Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited, B N, Raj Infratech Private Limited and $.G.S.G, Infra Rental Private Limited

The 0% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares are convertible into equal number of equity shares of the company. The conversion right reserved as aforesaid may be exercised by the
Lender on one or mare occasions during, the term of the loan agreement. Dividend on these CCPS shall be distributed as board decided as per the provision of section 143 of Company Act.

The CCPS allotted shall be compulsory convertible into equity shares of the Company upon completion of 20 Years from the date of allotment (22Dec/2023 for 6113748 CCPS and
31/Jan/2024 for 3976135 CCPS)or alternatively convertible into equity shares of the Company at any ume before 20 Years may be mumually agreed upon between the Company and CCPS
holder. Each CCPS Shall Be Converted Into Equity Shares In The Ratio Of |- 1 ("Conversion Price/Formula"), As per resolution The 0% CCPS holder shall carry votng rights in accordance
with Section 47 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules and regulations made thereunder,
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company converted 1.00.89 883 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of 210 each, at a premium of 01 per share, to equity shares

aggregating (o 100898830, to Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited, BN, Raj Infratech Private Limited and $.G.S.G. Infra Rental Private Limited.

iii) Compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares held by the holding company/entity having significant influence

vi) Shareholding of promoters are disclosed as below:

For the vear ended 31st March 2025

Promoter Name

No. of shares at

Change during the

No. of shares at the end

% of Total Shares

% change during

the beginning of year of the year the year
. the year
. Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited 61.13,748 60.59% - 0.00% -6, 59%
B.M. Raj Infratech Private Limited 1941418 19.24% - 0.00% -19.24%
S5.G.S.G. Infra Rental Pnivate Limited 2034717 20.17% - 0.00% =20, 17%
1,00,89,883 100, 00%% - 0.00% 100%0
For the year ended 31st March 2024
Promoter Name No. of shares at  Change during the  No. of shares at the end % of Total Shares % change during
the beginning of year of the year the year
the vear
Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited - 0.00% 61,013,748 6l 59% 6l), 59%,
BN, Raj Infratech Private Limited - 0.00% 941418 19.24% 19.24%,
5.G.5.G Infra Rental Private Limited - 0.00% 20,34 717 20.17% 20.17%
- 0.00% 1,00,89,883 100.00% 100.00%
For the year ended 31st March 2023
Promoter Name No. of shares at  Change during the  No. of shares at the end % of Total Shares % change during
the beginning of vear of the year the year
the year
Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
B.N. Raj Infratech Private Limited - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
5.G.S.G. Infra Rental Private Limited - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
- 0.00%: - 0.00%: 0.00%
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BN, AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UDI403MET200 1 PLC 448238

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 20253
(AN amennts are i INR lakhs, wnlesy otherwive stated)

18 Other Equity
Particulars Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
(#)  Securnties premium 23,738 .80 1873303 B.54224
(b) Revaluation reserve B = .
(b)  Retaned earnings 212331 86 14.205 33 10,015 54
(e} Equity component of compulsonly convertible cumulative preference shares - - .
46,060.67 32.938.35 18,557.80
(@) Securities preminm
Al the commencement of the vear 18,733 03 B542 24
Add  Securities premium on issue of shares 5.09929 10,190, 78
Less  Share issue expenses 93 4) -
At the end of the vear 23,738.80 18,733.03
{b) Retained earnings
At the commencement of the year 14,208 33 10,015 54
Net profit for the year 812632 4,189 55
Cther comprehensive income for the vear
Remeasurement (gain) loss on defined emplovee benefit plans (net of wx) 9 78) 023
At the end of the year 22,321.86 14,208.33

(a) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The shate 1ssues expenses has been debited to secunty premium account The reserve can be utilised only for limied
purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(b) Retained Earnings
R d gs are the p

“

{loss) that the Company has earned/incurred 1ill date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distnbutions paid to shascholders Retained

earnings include re-measurement loss / ( gan) on defined benelit plans. net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss




BN AGRITECH LIMITED
CIN No - U #03MH2U1 1 PLC448238
Totes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
tAN amiownis are in INK Takhs, wiless otherwise stated)
1% Provisivns (Nun-current)
Particelars Asan As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2033
Provisions far emphiyee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 18) fd 44 3765 11.85
Provision for compensated absences (refer note %) 4 45 34.00 1763
148,92 '."I.ﬁ_é 34,50
20 Borrowings (Non-current)
Interest Rute Maturity EMI Frequency Asar As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Aﬁul.wﬂ
Secured Loans
{a) Vehicle Term Loans from Banks
Bank of Baroda Velicle Loan 1 Year MCLR+5P+0,73% W27-28 Monthly instaliments 52539 33044 6297
(Al Secured by Hypothecation of Vehicles and muaraniced by Direetors in their Individual Capacity)
Stawe Bank OF India Vihacke Loan #.75% 202930 Monthly imstallmends 363 1635 1878
(Al Secured by Hypothecation of Vehiches and puaranieed by Directors in their lndividual Capacity )
23102 6,78 L4
(v} Dther Term Loans from Banks*
1 Year MCLR withoul SP
Bank of Baroda BGECL +1% 2026-27 Monthly instaliments 43833 93B3 145833
Pungab National Bank BGECL 1 Year MCLR + 1% 2027-28 Monlity installments 3167 457.25 400,80
Uco Bank Loan BGECL 1 Year MCLR + 1 95% 2028-29 Monthly installments 44714 126,26 45397
Pungab Natioral Bank GECL 1 Year MCLR + 1% 2026-27 Monthhy i EINE) Sl 00 HINLRY
Gruss Secured Loan Long Term 155006 2, T0L84 372218
Less: Current Maturitics of Long Teom Debi 1.271.95 120559 1. 20W1.65
Net Secured Loan Long Term H00.12 134404 1.903.27
Unsecured loans
Lavans from Others 12% 2027-28 Monthly installments 2,500, 74 - -
From Dircclors L] -
Less: Curreid Maturities of Long Term Debt 162
Nt Unsecured Long Term louns 20512 = -
Total Nan-current borrowings 1 868.24 184404 2.903.27
*The entire facility is secured by Hypolbecation of present and future stocks. presei and future recenvables. present and future other curment asscts, other fixed asscts and equitabl of 13 collueral ies along with
Personal Guaranics of Shri, Ajay Kumar Agarwal, Shri. Anubbay Agarwal, Smi Ashima Agarwal and Corporate Guaranice.
Hypothecation details for long terms loans are detailed hercunder:
1 Vehicle loans have been obtained from Banks wilh lypothecation of vehscle as primary secaniy
2 BGECL louns beve besn obtained with hyp son of stecks and recef s primary securily
3 GECL loans have been obiained with hypothecation of stocks and receivable as primary security
4
n B-m‘whg {eurrent)
Interest Rate Maturity As an As at As at
Particul
. A March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
.
Current maturitics of term loans 1,713.58 1,20559 1,2M1,65
Cash credit 9 %035 12,146.70 15,605,01
Axis Bank - Cash Credit | Year MCLR +0.20% Payable on demand
{19.63)
U0 Bank - Cash Credin | Wear MCLR + 1.95%  Payable on denand
(BL6.TT)
Saate Bank of India -Cash Credat 1 Year MCLR + 2% Payable on demand 10R2 00 2 B5E.06
Pungab Nasioral Bank - Cash Credit 1 ¥ear MCLR + 2.65% Pavable on demand
1.5% (relaxaton)
TTH LBRR 3T 449916
Indian Overseas Bank = Cash Creds | ¥Year MCLR +1.7%  Pavable on demeand 570747 TS 16 401 81
Bank of Barods - Cush Credit 1.28% over | year Payable on demsand
MCLR + 5P 7.3l 481726 551708
Bandlan Bank - Cash Credit External Benchmark rate Pavable on densand
+1.5% 1.RG12E 1.505.06 1534587
Working capital demand loans 45,404, 54 16,220.90 132510
Axis Bank - WCDL I Year MCLR +0.20% Pavable on demand
4.974.00
UCO Bank - WCDL | Year MCLR + 1 95%  Payable o densand
ERLE R AT 508833
State Bank of India - WCDL 1 Vear MCLR + 2% Pavablc on demand 510855 510476 513663
Pungab National Bank » WCDL I Year MCLR + 2.65% Pavable on demsand
1.5% (relacation)
EREHIEEH EXULTEEN -,
Hank of Baroda - WCDL 095% over tenor based  Payable on demand
MCLR + 5P 12 RO 0o 10060897 L0, 00, ey
Bandhan Bank - WCTH. External Benchmark e Payable on demand
+1.35% 30L5. 10 302510 302705
CSE Bank - WCDL IM MCLR + 0.55% Py sl on dermand 249173 = "
Indian Overseas -« WCDL I Year MCLR + 1 7%  Payablc on demand 4,000 (0
Credit Card Payahles
Credit Card Pavables 26523 264.TY 138.24
Unsccurcd oang
Loans from related parties®*
From Cormporates - 2,808, 98 #.180.65
From Directors - 2184 4R9.80
57,333.59 5286569 55866,.57
*The cmlire facility is scowred by Hypathccation of prescat and future stocks, present and future recenables, present and future sther cumrent assets. other fixed assels and equitabh gage of 25 collateral itbeng with
Personal Guarantee of Shri. Ajay Kumar Agarwal, Sho. Anubhav Agareal. Smi. Ashima Agarwal and Corporate Guaranice | e& Ltd .
W Tl i St related psties ae e inderest bearing dind resiiyablc on demidod; FOl' B N_ Ag
. ¥, .
1 e -
Accounary, th. Sign.
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BN, AGRITECH LIMITED
CIN No - USL463MEIN IPLCAR1IS

Notes in fnumcial statements for the year cvded March 31, 2025
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19 Pryvisions (Nen-currest)
As ut Asat As at
Forsian. - March 31,2825 March 31, 034 April 81,2023
Provisiens fur cmplayer henefits
Purvision Ror pratuity (refer note 1) P 1708 188
Frovision for compensaied abscnces (refer wote T8) LS 24,00 1765
13 Y3 -t
8 Berrwiogs (Nomcurrem) ——
nteresi Rate Mutariry EMI Frequency Asm As As st
Farvcalans March 31,2008 Mareh 31,3800 Apell91,202)
Secured Lowm
(a) Vehigle Term Losns from Banks
Bank of Barods Vehick Loan 1 Year MCLR+SPo0 79% W71 Mowhb sstafinents 5250 B 6397
LAl 5 Hypotlh of Viehvicles wod by Directars im theis lndivisdual Capaciey)
Simbe Baok O India Vichicle Loan BTSN IR0 Munthis instalinicss 563 1635 1876
t L f Viehicles and by Dircciors in their lindtidual Capacay)
Az 33678 W17
{5 Ovteer Term Louas from Banke®
1 Yeur MCLR wirhow SP
Bank of Barods BGECL 1% 2026-27 Meboathdy imgtallincnts 45503 N 145833
Pnjob Nationel Bask BGECL | Year MCLR + 1% 02728 Motk maadlinenia. AL 45725 A0
Uko Bank Loan BGECL | Year MOLR + 1.95% 02829 Monehly imssilments “urim 76 % 8397
Punjsh Nationa) Bank GECL | Year MCLR + 1% 2026-27 Moy install 3 T —
Goruws Secured Lown Lang Term 13%0.06 EREE T HITLIN
Less: Current Matwrities of Losig Term Dbt 127195 120459 121168
Net Secored Lasn Long Term o NEY LN 1983.27
Umiecared lnans
Lo froan Othery 12% 02710 Maorstiihy snstallments 150074 ™ -
Firom Directors L = =
7 Less. Curresst Matwivies of Lowg Term Deit LI
et Vnsecured Long Term logas 185910 2 i)
Total Non-corrend borrewings i}
“The entire facshity is scoured by Hypothecation of presend s future stocks. presest sud fture recenvables, present ather awscrs, obber fved. mortgage BEcwite:
Persorul Guarsntee of Shri Ajry Kumsr Agarwal Shei Amgbhay Agirwal. Sl Ashinia Agarial and Corporsis Guarsmce
Ivp i toans are dotabicd b
1 Vehiche loans have b = with wehicls an privary seounty
2 BOECL loms have been oheained , o stocks aned neccivablc s primary scourity
3 GECL loans sbazined with lyporh of stocks mml AR PRMATY BECWRTY
4
21 Borrewiags (curremy)
Particslars mterest Rate Maturity Asm Asmt Asmt
Murch 31, 1035 Murch 31,2024 ___April 01, U238
Seeureddrom hanks*
Current matnrives of term ngns. 1L713.50 120559 1, 20065
Cash ervdit TR0, 55 214670 Wansan
Axit Baak - Cash Crodil | Year MCLR + 0.20% Payable on demand
(19.65)
UCO Bark - Cash Crodiy | Yeur MOLR + 1.95% Payible on demaad
h26.77) 323186 131903
Stz Bank of India -Cash Credn | Yemr MCLR + 2%  Pmvable on dovamnd L2 05 10529 LRER 06
Pusyab National Bank « Cash C redit 1 Year MOLR + 165% Poublc on detmansd
0. 5%, (relavation)
T 1,888.37 440916
Andian Overgens Bank - Cash Credit | Yeur MCLR + 1.7%  Puyabie on demand 5,747 715116 7401 #1
Bank of Bornds - Cish Credsi L25% over | year Payuhie o demand
MCLR + 5P o731 AR17 26 53517 0%
Bandhao Bank - Cash Crodit B mte Payvable on d d
4% 18612 1,905 06 194987
Warking eapital demand ko ans 54045 0622090 3,252.22
Axis Bank - WCDL 1 Yeat MOLR +820%  Payablc oa demand
1900
U0O Bank - WCDL | Year MCLR + 1 #5%  Payable on dewand
£ e i 3 089,07 300880
Sae Bank of India - WCDH. | Vear MCLR + 2% Payahie on deseamd 510855 510476 513663
Prungabs National Bark - WCDL | Yeur MOLR + 2.65% Pevable on denund
5% { relacation)
00,00 3,000 00 .
Bk of Baods - WODL 0939 over tonor baved  Payable on devmaiad
MCLR + 5P 1280400 1,001 57 10,000 00
Pundion Bk - WCDL External Benchomask rate Pavubic os demumst
+335% LE L8] 1,025 10 101705
58 Bunk « WODL FMMCLR +0.55%  Payablc on desand 24T - -
Indisin Cvesoens - WCDL | Yo MCLE +1.7%  Paysble on dewand 9,000 (0

Persomal Guaraniee of Shii. Ajay Kumae

*The entire faciliny i socured by Hypothecation of present
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - Ul 403MH20 11PLCA48238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
AN ety awe i INR lakhis, anfess atfierwise stated)

** Danng the year endest 31 March 2024, 1he Company hod converiod outstamling loans fom redated pames wne Compulsanly Conveatibe Frelerence Shares (CU1S) as per the opproval of the Board of Directors dated Apoil 4
2023 and Sharchalders dated Apral 8 2003 The details of the cmversion are as fallows

Related party Loan Amount (%) [No. of CCPS Issued E:]“ VMUE per Cors :_f"""'" PRESRS

Growth Harvest Industries Private Limited 67,86,26,000.00 61,13,748.00 10 101
B.N. Raj Infratech Private Limited 21,54,98,000.00 19,41,418.00 10 101
5.G.5.G. Infra Rental Private Limited 22,58,53,600.00 20,34,717.00 10 101

22 Trade payables
Particulurs As at Asat As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April i1, 2023
Trade payahles
fu) Total entstoneding dues of muore enterprises and small emerprises - - -
ihy Total eutstansdang dues of ereduions cther than meero emerpnses and small enterpnses ARR|Z05 23437 71 14671
SEMILOS 2343771 334671
— =
For amonnt due and terms and condstions of pelated party payables, refer aowe 43
a Dietnbs of dues wo mecre and small enterprises ws delined wnder e MSMED Acl. 2006
Particulars As at Asat Asut
March 31, 2125 March 31, 2024 April b1, 2023

iay the priseipal amount remanung unpad ooy supplier at the end of Anancial vear
(b thies interest due on principal amount reninsng unpaad to wny suppleer it the end of financeal vear
(e} The amwunt of interest pasd by the buver m terms of section 16 of the MSMED Ac 2006 along with the ameounts of the payment mad to the supplicr bevond the

appownted day dunng cach accounting vear

tdy The amount of iaterest due and pavable for the persod of delay w making paymet (which have been pand bet bevoned the appented diy duning the vear | bt witloat

adclig the mierest geaifed mmder e MSMED Act 2006

ie) the amouant of mierest aceraed and remaming unpard a1 the end of financal vear
(11 The amount of further inferest remamang due and payable even in the succcedimg years, wtil such date when the spterest dues s above ure actually panc o the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowamee as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The above information regarding dues 10 Micea, Simal! and Modum enterpmses as defined under the Micro, Small and Medim Enterprises Development Act | MSMEDN, 2006 has been determined o the extend identified arsd

wformatim avaiable wath the Company pursuant o Seetien 22 of the Miero, Small and Medium enierprases Development Act (MSMELY, 2

b Teade payabies are pon-interest beaging and are pormally setthed on 360 to 640 davs tems

€ Reler e 41 for copual menagement process

23 Oiher financial liabilithes (Current)

Particulars As at Ay at As at
Maurch 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Secunty Deposits 00 2649 n33
Dervative liabilities £94.45 - -
(her pavables 1,383 43 104330 270325
1,607,594 14169, 7% 2,703.58
=i i Teti
24 Othwer current labilities
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024 April 11, 2023
Statutory dues payable 33000 267 80
Emplewvess berefil pavables i A6 3472
Coniract Liabilities 242 80
7010 1,145,532
===
25 Provisions {Current}
Particulars As al Asat As at
= March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April itl, 223
Pronasion for granuty {refer note 38) 344 2003 §535
Pravesion for compensated shsenees veler note 38) 3027 943 595
6471 29_4is 21.30
i
26 Current tax Halilithes (Net)
Asat As at Asal

Particulars

Frowision for meonwe tay (Met of Advanee Tax, TS and TCS)

| 680 36

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April U1, 2023

168G

122825 95,64




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UDI403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

27 _Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale of Goods

Revenue from contract with customers 6,27.979.2¢6 3.66,637.90
Total revenue from contract with customers 6,17.979.26 3,66,637.90
Sales by Geography

India 6,127,979 26 366,637 80
Outside India - i
Total revenue from contract with customers 8,27.979.26 3.66,637.90
Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at g point in time 6,27.979.26 3,066,637 90
Goods transferred over nme -
Total revenue from contract with customers 6,27,979.26 3,66,637.90
Note :

a) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with Contract Price:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particular March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract Price 2797926 3.66,709 70
Adjustment for :

Cash Discounts - (71.80)
Revenue from contract with customers 6.27.979.26 3.66.637.90

b} Significant changes in contract Assets and Liabilities during the year:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Movement of Contract Liability
Amounts included in contract habilines at the bemnming of the vear 847 80 %6l 36
Amounts received adjusted agamst contract hability duning the vear 499 55 Slede
Per bl fied dunng the year (547 80) (%01 36)
Amount included in contract liabilities at the end of the year 499,58 816.36
Movement of Contract Assets
Contract asset an the beginning of the year - -
Contract asset at the end of the year i< =
28 _Other income
Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
Interest income
= on bank deposits 152.32 69.39
- Others = 16.85
Net Gain/Loss on sale / fur valuaton of Investment designated as at FVTPL 700 -
Net gain on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 2.40 -
Unwanding of discount on financial assets measured at amartised cost .34 116
Gain on Foreign Exchange 373,85 {4.59)
Gain on financial instruments measured a1 FVTPL - 307
Reversal of lmparrment on Trade Receivables - 19.37
Other nuscellanecus mcome 2.79 .50
540,79 112.76

29 (a)

Cost of material consumed

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Opeming Stock of Raw Material 27,002.28 30,074.66
Purchases 6,26,119.83 3.53,086.14
Direct Expenses 12,376.74 6, 737,66
0,05495.55 359,898, 46
Less: Cloming stock of raw material £0,731.42 27.002.28
Cost of Material Consumed 6.,14,767.43 3,62,896.18

M
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B.N, AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UDI403MH201 1PLC448238

Naotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19(b) _Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

3

a2

For the year ended

Faor the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
lnventary at the beginming of the vear
Work in Progress 25987 593.08
Funished Goods 13.153.89 924504
By Products 44606 265 43
23.860.42 10,103.55
Inventory at the End of the year
Wark in Progress 1536 25987
Finished Goods 4183550 23.153.89
By Products 222.92 440 66
43,075.78 23.860.42
Changes in Inventories (19.213.36) {13.756.87)
Employee benefit expenses
T For the year ended For the year ended
Faradat March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, bonus and incentives 2,709.00 1,489 66
Contnbution to provident and other funds 138 06 71.78
~Contnbuton to emploves state msurance - .
-Conmbuton to national pension scheme 6.1l 436
-Conmbution to provident funds = =
Ciratuity expense 2832 074
Compensated absences expense 7407 2026
Staff welfare expenses 92.77 35 44
305533 1.642,29

The Code on Social Secunty, 2020 (*Code’) relaung 1o employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits recerved Presidential assent in September 2020 The Code has
been published in the Gazetle of India. Certain sections of the Code came into effect on 3 May 2023, However, the final rulesfinterpretation have not vet been 1ssued. The Company will

agsess the impact of code when 1t comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the code becomes effective

Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024

Interest

= Interest on cash credit facibity
= Interest on borrowings

= Interest on lease habilines

- Interest on bl discounting
Bank charges

Depreciation and

1,991 34 224035
578788 201550
6783 4.07
675,98 31517
8,522.03 555509

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deprectaton on property. plant & equipments (refer note 4 205335 1.204 31
Amortisation on other intangble assets (refer note 5) 14 81 G
Depreciation on nght of use of assets (refer note &) 141.30 126 26
2. 209.46 1,335.72




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED
CIN No - UN403MH201 1 PLC448238
Notes o financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33 Other expenses

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advertisement Exp, 61014 186.24
Auditers Renumeration 23 .80 13.040
Books And Penodicals Expenses 1.32 090
Brokerage Expenses #8404 584 .03
Cleaning and Forwarding Expenses 107735 38427
Convevance and Vehicle Running  Expenses 166.99 12778
Conp Social Resposibilty (CSR) Exg 4125 52,58
Credit Rating Expenses 43,50 11.50
Disector Sitting Fees 4.15 4 86
Donation 1123 1731
Elecincity Expenses 19.78 1327
Fees and Software Subscription Expenses 10963 2774
Festival Expenses 1863 9.84
Laoss on financial instruments measured at FVITPL 19978 C
Impairment of Trade Recervables 440 30 -
Insurance Expenses 171.65 Bl.63
Laboratory Expenses 1567 9.61
Legal Expenses 27424 127.77
(Mfice Expenses 69.88 45.62
Postage & Couner Expenses 10.25 575
Renewal and License Fees 1408 6.88
Printing & Statonery Expenses 19.77 15.70
Professional & Consulung Service 47735 277.32
Rates and Taxes 497 193
Rent Expenses 102,39 34,90
Reparr & Mant. Expenses 25833 31181
ROC Charges 1 40 1527
Sales & Business Promonon Expenses 1,183 44 313011
Secunty Housekeeping Expenses 160,02 195 56
Telephone & Mobile Expenses 157 12,581
Tour & Travelling Expenses 666,32 373.92
Website Expenses 17.26 4.6l
Weights & Measurements Expenses 1.29 0.27

7.160.31 3.210.77
*Refer note 42 for related parties transactions
a) Dretails of pay ments to auditors

g Far the year ended For the year ended
Particitacy March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As auditor fon accrual basis, excluding applicable taxes)
=Statutory and Tax Audit Fees 20,00 8.00
-Secretanal Audit Fees .90 030
~Cost Audnt Fees .60 0.30
=Other Audit Fees 230 440

2380 13.00
b) Details of Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

. As at As at
EAcct March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
aj Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the vear 81.20 52:53
b} Amount approved by the Board to be spent dunng the vear 8128 5253

In cash Yei to be paid in cash Total
¢} Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2025:
1) Construction/acquisition of any asset
1) On purpeses other than (1) above 81.25 - 31.25
Total Bl.25 - 51.2%

== s

d} Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2024;
1} Construction/acquasition of any asset -
11} On purposes other than (1) above 52.35 = 5255
Total - - 52 55
e} Details of related pany ransacnons

" As at As at
Ptinion March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
¢} Details related io spent / unspent obligations:

1) Comnbution o Public Trust - -
i} Conmbunon o Chantable Trust 8125 52,55

u1) Unspent amount in relation to:
= Omgeang project
- (Mher than ongoing project

As per Sectien 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicabulity threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of s average net profit for the immediately preceding three

‘Irector/Auth, Sign
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BN AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN Mo - U I403MH201 1 PLC448238

MNotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
[All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless othervase stated)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) The amount of shortfall at the end of the vear out of the amount required to be spent by the Company dunng the year. - -
b) The total of previous years' shortfall amounts - -
<} The reason for above shortfalls by way of a note & Z
) Shonfall a the end of the year £ =
2) The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Compaiy |
The donations are provided by the company for Promoting Educaton. Eradicatng Poverty, Ensuring Environmental
Sustainability, Traning o promote Rural sparts, nationally recognised sporis and Promote health care mcluding rehatlitation
In case of Section 135(6) (Ongoing Project)
Opening Balance as at April 1, 2024 o] Amount spent during the Closing Balance as at March 31, 2025
With (“M)’ H ml.fxp-u auc‘u:.:n - [ T rv:llx TR n:r I With Compan T ST u-z‘\.an T

In case of Section 135(5) (Other than ongoing project)

. Amwuni deposited in Specified | Amount required io be spent | Amount spent during the .
Opening Balance Fund of Sch. VIl within 6 menths during the year year Closing Balance
(0.02) - 81.20] (81.25) [0.07)
In case of Section 135(6) (Ongoing Project)
Opening Bal as at April 01, 2023 T Amount spent during the Closing Bal. as at March 31, 2024
With Co = ] m.- TON - I T Il‘l{l_l TSEpEIT n:r L= Ly With Company TIT S FaT 2TE |I_an TSI
— ] : I : — =
In case of Section 135(5) {Other than irg project}
5 Amount deposited in Specified | Amount required to be spent|  Amount spent during the 3
Dpening Batance Fund of Sch. VII within 6 months during the year Vear Closing Balance
- - 52.53 (32.55) (0.02)

34 Earning per share
Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year aunbutable o equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding durning the vear
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the convernble preference shares) by the weighted average

Piarti collars. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Profit attnbutable to equity halders of the company 7964 07 4,189 55
‘Weighted average number of equity shares in calculanng basic EPS 23201868 1,99.42 360
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculanng diluted EPS 3,27606.525 2,2298.614
Face value of equity shares (INR) 10,00 1000
Basic profit per share (INR) 34.33 21.01
Diluted profit per share (INR) 24.31 18 79

Adjustment of right issue in Basic/dilited EPS for th year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended

Particulars 2
For the year ended

Right shares 1ssued to shareholder having shareholding pre-nght offer 95,40,125
Right 1ssue s1ze 28620375
Price at which right shares are i1ssued 10
Fair value of share before nght 1ssue 140,00
Theoriucial Ex-nght price 4250
Bonus element {Fair Value before nghts / TERP) 329
Adyusted weighted average shares for Basic EPS 4,50,88,038
Adjusted werghted average shares for Basic EPS 5,46,52.664
Adjusted Basic EPS 1766
Adjustad Diluted EPS 14.57
Reconciliation of net profii/(loss) attributable 1o equity shareholders (basic earnings per For the year ended Faor the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net profit after tax as per Statement of profit and loss 706407 4,189 55
Dradend on convertible preference shares - -
INet profit atiributable 1o equity sharehalders 7.964 07 4,189.55
Calculation of weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2025

Number Weighted Average
Equity shares as on Apnl 12024 1,99 42 360 1,99,42 360
Equity shares issued during the year 7.27.41,622 32,359,508
Other equity instrument
Compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares as on March 31, 2025 1,00,89 583 93 64,650
(During the year, 1.00.89 883 convertible preference shares were conventad into same number of equity shares on 13 March 2025)
10.27.73.865 3,27,660,52%

- Agritech Ltd.

Directgg/Auth. Sign.




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No = UD1403MH2Z01 1P LC448238

Naotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
[All amounts are i INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5

Caleulation of weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2024

MNumber Weighted Average
Equity shares as on Apnil 1, 2023 1.99.42 360 199,42 360
Other equity instrument
Compulsonly convertible cumulative preference shares as on March 31, 2024 100,89 883 23,56,254
{Dunng the year, 1.00.89.883 convernble preference shares were issued on 31 January 2024)

3.00,32 243 22298 614
Exceptional Items
Piaibiiitiich For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lass on shortfall of insurance recovenies and fixed assets desiroyed during cyclone a5 .07 463
95.07 4.63

During the year ended 31 March 2024, vanous fixed assets hke furniture, fixtures & electrification, land and building, plant and machinery were destroved an 6th June 2023 due to
Biparjoy cyclone occured in Gujarat. Excepional amount of Rs. 4,631 has been recognised for these assets having WDV as INR 4,02.95 970 whereas claim approved by msurance
company was INR 3,98,32,929, W‘
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company recorded an additional amount of Rs. 95,07 Lac on account of a diff berween ¢ recervables and the actual a"wq\

rB. N. Agritech | tg

Direét ufh. s
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BN AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN Mo = U01403MH201 1PLC 448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(AL compvierats e i INR Rakhs, unlevs athemvise siated)

36 Tax Expense
For the year ended For the year ended
Particula
" March 31,2025 March 31,2024
(@) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current mcome tax
~for the vear 3.007 58 1,364 49
=Adjustments m respect of current incomie 1ax of previous year 024 34 196 68
Total current 1ax expense 353191 1,761.16
Deferred tax . .
Relating to ongmation and reversal of temporary differences (13337) (B7 8%
Tas expense for the year 3.798.54 167331
(b)) Deferred tas beacfit recognised directly in other comprebensive income
For the vear ended For the vear ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Deferred tax
Net (gan ) loss on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 329 (U.08)
Total 329 (0.08)
Bifurcation of the income tax recognized in other comprehensive income into:
Iterns that wall not be reclassified to staternent of profit and loss
lterms that wall be reclassified w statement of profit and loss 320 i 08)
Total 329 (08§
1€} Reconciliation of effective tax rate (tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax raie)
For the vear ended For the vear ended
Particalars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Acconnting profit 11,924.87 5862.86
Tax expense ot statutory tax rate @ 25 168% (March 31, 2024 15 | 68%) 300128 1475 57
Tax effect of :
Tax effect of exg that are not deducuble for tax purposes (11565) 1642
Tax effect of mcome charged at different tax rate
Adjustments m respect of Curment MCome 1ax of previous vear 924 34 |9 68
Re-assessment of tax posion
Uthers (1139 (15 34)
3,798.54 167331

(C1]

(d)

Notes

a) Sectron 1 15BAA n the Income Tax Act, 1961 was mtroduced by The Government of Indsa on 20 September 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 which provides an option o
companies for paying meome tax at reduced rates m accordance with the provisions conditions defimed m the said section of W continue with the existing tax structure and accordingly, the Company had

decided not to opt for the new tax regime

b) On 30 March 2009, MCA has 1ssued amendment regarding the income tax Uncestinty over Income Tax Tresmments As per the Company's assessinent. there are no material meome tax wicenamniies over

ingcome tax treatments durmg the current financial vear

Deferred tux assets (net) as March 31, 2025

Particuls As ot Recognised in profit or  Recognised in other  Recognived directly in As at
" March 31, 2024 Tuss comprehensve income ather equity March 31, 2025
Deferred tax asvets (Habilities)
Intangible Assets - 41%) - (4.15)
Provision for gratuty and compensated absences 25435 2503 ile - 5N
Provision for bonus - - - -
Provinon for deubtful debts IS8T 11081 - - 146 68
Provision for doubtful advances . - - L
Provasion for share based paviments - - -
Prelimmary expenses . . . -
Property, plant & equipment 12799 (53 04y - - T4 G
Uther fmancial assets 2a 052 - J42
Uther non-current assets - - - .
Lease bty 184 14 3 50 - . 214 61
Bught of use assets (165 89) (27 36i - (193 25)
Dervative Instrument measwed at FVTPL = 48 94 . 48 94
Financial assets measures at far valse through profit of Joss (O77) 21 - - 134
Deferred tax assets 209.65 13337 329 = 346,31
Deferred tax assets (met) as March 31, 2024
As Recognised in profit or  Recognised in other  Revognised directly in As mt

Ty April 1, 2023 loss comprehensye income other equity March 31,2024

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
1530 o2 1008

Provision for gratuity and compensated absences
Provision for bonus

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for doubtful advinces

=y BN Anrit
mror 5.0V, ;""Lg' itecn




BN, AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No- UDL403MH 2011 PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
AN amounits ave i INR Jakhs, unlesy otherwise staredy

Provision for share based payments

Prelimunary expenses

Property, plant & equipment

Other financial assets

Other non-current assets

Lease hability

Raght of use assets

Finaneial assets measures at {air value through profit or loss
Deferred tax assets

O. IN. Agritech |

Director/futh. Siqn,

51.69 76 30 " " 127,99
344 (0 54) - - 290
173.20 10,90 : - 18410
(162,50} (3.39) - - {165 89)
= (0,77 - - (0.97)
121.88 87,85 (0.08) 40.74 209.65




BN, AGRITECH LIMITED
CIN No - U01403MH201 1PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(AN amenimes are in INR fakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities (net):

Particulars "“_ s Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Al the commencement of the year 209 65 121.88
Tax expense during the vear recognised in profit or loss 13337 8783
Tax expense during the vear recognised in OC| 329 (0 08)
At the end of the vear 346.31 209.65
37 Components of other comprehensive income
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity 15 shown below:
Paiticabars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss .
Re-measurement gans/(losses) on defined benefit plans (13.07) 03l
Income tax effect 3.19 (0 08)
{9.78) 0.23

"Or B. N. Agritech | 14
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UD1403IMH2011PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
| AN amounts are in INR Takhs, wnless atherwise siated)

| 38 Employee benefits

4. Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance , employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the
amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees, Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain
employees. is made to a Government administered fund and charged as an expense 1o the standalone statement of profit and loss. The above benefits are
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyand the monthly contributions.

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
armcuiary March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employer contribution to provident and other funds 138.06 7178

b. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, Under the Act. employees who have completed five vears of service are entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit
equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed vear of service, The same is payvable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is
earher

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected
umit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately
t0 build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determuining the
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market vields on govermment bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial
gains and losses (net of tax) are recogmsed mmediately m the Other Comprehensive licome (OC])

This is an unfunded benefit plan for qualifying employees. This scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five vears of service.

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Company to following risks:

Salary inflation risk:
Actual salary mereases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary ncrease rate assumption in furure valuations will also increase the liability,

Discount rate risk:
Reduction in discount rate m subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality & disability risk:
Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or hagher than assumed in the valuation can impact the habilities.

Withdrawals risk:
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

The following table sets out the starus of the defined benefit plan as required under Ind AS 19 - Employes Benefits:

3 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars J
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit liability at the beginning of the year 57.08 37.20
Interest cost 4.18 279
Current service cost 2414 18.00
Benefits paid (0.19) -
Remeasurement (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income 13.07 (0.31)
Balance at the end of the year 98.88 57.68
ii. The following is the break-up of current and non-current gratuity:
. As at As at
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non current gratuity 64.44 37.65
Current gratuity 3444 20,03
98.88 57.68

iil. Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss

For the vear ended

For the year ended

i. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
|
|

Fartlculars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest cost 4.18 2.79
Current service cost 24.14

218.32

AYTHECH L

18.00



B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UDI403MH201 IPLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
AN amounts ave m INK Lakhs, inless otherwise stated)

iv. Bifurcation of Actuarial (loss)/gain on pbligations:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Farticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Description
Actuanial loss/(gain) on arising from change in financial assumption 279 0.56
Actuarial loss on arising from experience adjustrment 10.28 (0.87)
Actuarial loss/(gain) for the year on defined benefit obligation 13.07 (0.31})
v. Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determimmg gratuity obligations for the Company’s plan is shown below:
Particulars Azt A

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate (per annum} 6.25% 7.25%
Future salary growth rate {per annum) 5.00% 5000
Retirement age (years) 58 58
Mortality rates TALM (2012 - 14) TALM (2012 - 14)
Attrition /| Withdrawal Rate 21.50% 5.00%
vi. Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation on account of change in significant assumption:
Particulars et iy

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 1.0% increase in discount rate 196.02) (54.24)
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 1.0% decrease in discount rate 101.97 61.72
Salary growth rate
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 1.0% increase in salary growth rate 101,99 60,67
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 1.0% decrease in salary growth rate (95.94) (55.23)
Withdrawal Rate
Impact on defined benefit obbgation due to 1.0% mncrease i withdrawal rate (98.03) (57.74)
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 1.0% decrease in withdrawal rate 99.74 5753
The sensitivity analysis above have been determaned based on method that extrapolaies the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
change in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting date,
vii. Expected maturity analysis
Particulars hes g

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within | year 34.44 20,03
Between | and 3 vears 2024 643
Over 5 years 44200 3122
Total expected payments 98.87 37.67
viii. Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan:

" As at As at

i ot March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan (in vears) 15.00 12,00

¢. Other long-term employee benefits
Leave encashment

Provision for leave benefits 1s made by the Company on the basis of actuarial valuation using the Projected Umit Credit (PUC) method.

Liability with respect to the leave encashment is deternined based on an actuanial valuation done by an mdependent actuary at the year end and is charged 1o

Statement of Profit and Loss. Other long term employee benefits comprise of compensated absences/leaves, which are recognized based on actuarial
valuation The actuarial liability for compensated absences as at the vear ended 315t March, 2025 1s Rs, 114.75 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 43 43 Lakhs).

©. N. Agritech Ltq.
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Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(AN comenents are i INR labths, wedess otherwise stated)

3% Finuncial risk management

(i) Risk management framew ork

The Compary's principal (imancial babalites comprise borrowmngs, trade and other payables and ether financial liabilities The main purpose of these Nmancial liablives is to finance the Company's operations.
The Company's princrpal financil assets include wrade and other recenvables, cash and cash equivalents. and other financial assets that derive dircctly from s operations.

The Compiany is exposed 10 market rigk, cradit rask and Liguidity nisk. The Coenpiam, senior management aversees the management of these risks. The Company's sesor management reviews the financial risks and
e appropriate fnancial risk goverance framewerk for the Company. The Company lancial risk activities are governed by appropriate policics and procedures and that financial risks are identified, mensurcd
and ausnaged m accordance with the Company's policies and nsk objectives,

(i) Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will nol meet its obligations under a inancial instrument ar customer contract, leading 1o a fiancial loss. The Compamy 15 exposed 0 eredi rsk from its operating
activilies {primagily trade receivables) and from its other activities including dernative contracts. The Company pencrally deals with prarties which has good credit rating’ worthiness or based on Company imernal
asscssment. The Company's. masimum exposure 1o credi risk s lamited (o the carrying amount of followmg types of finascial assets.

- cash and cash cquivalenis.

= traide recervabics. and

= other financial assels carmsed at amartised cost

ab Credit rigk management
The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal assessment, contimuomsh monitormg defaults of customer and other cosuterpartics. sdentified cither medividually or by the Company, and
incorporates this information mo fs credit nsk controls. Internal ceedit assement is pecformed for cach class of financial instruments with diffcrent characteristics

Adgels under eredit nsk:

Particulars As a Asat As at
Murch 31, 2025 Mlarch 31, 2024 Aqril 01, 2023

Trade receivables 5836993 do 476 55 3583686
Cash and cash cquivalens 42993 13411 42800
Other fiancial assels 457 58 53281 13240
b} Reconciliation of less allowance

of s alowance on Trade Receivables | Amount
Laoss allowance on 1 April 2023 &
Allowance for expected credit loss (net) (1937
Less allowance en 31 March 2024 (1937
Allowance for expecied credit boss (net) 44030
Loss altow ance on 31 March 2025 42093
The Company ‘s Wweasary, m with the board approved policy. 1t cash and cash equivabents, deposits and ivestrsent in equity = with banks. financial and other institutions, kaving pood

reputation and past track record. and high credit ratme. Stlbarky, coumer-partwes of the Company ‘s ather receivables carry either no or very mimimal credit risk. Further, the Company reveews the credit-
worthiness of the counter-partics (on the basis of s ratings. credit spreads amd financial strength) of all the above assets on an ongomy basis, and U required. takes necessany AR IEAsIes.

(i) Liquidity risk

Ligudity risk 1 the risk that the Company will encounter difficalty i meetmg the obligations associted with s financial lablitics that are settbed by delivering cash or another fisancial psset. The Company's
approach o managing lquidity @ to ensure. a5 far as possible. that it will have sulficient liquidity to meet 165 habiliics when they are due. under both normal and stressed conditions, without incur ing
unacceplable losses or visking damage to the Company s reputation

The Compaury belseves tis revenue, along with proceeds from fuancmg activities will contimue 1o provide the necessary funds 1o coner ils short term lquidity needs. In addition the Company projects cash Mlows
comsidering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet liguidity requirenient.

The company has also entered o supply chain fnance arrangement to smoathen the payment process of the suppliers. Although the payment terms are not significantly extended bevond the nermal credit terms
agreed upon with otbur suppliers. the arrangement heips in making the cashilows moee prediciable,

Exposure to liquidity risk

The Tollowmg arc the remauning contractual maturities of financil habilities at the reporimg date. The amoums are gross and undi d, and mchede Interest pay and exclude the impact of
HeRing agreements.

As at March 31, 20258 Amount in INR Likhs
Contractual cash flows
0 -1 year 1 -5 years Above 5 veurs Tutal

Particulars Carrying amwunt

Nom-dherivative financial liabilities

Borrowing 60,202.13 AT 44822 2213343 4390 $9,715.58
Trade pavabies 881205 SHHI205 . - SHEIT08
Cnhier Naaneial labilines 141343 1.413.43 - - 1.413.43

1.20,427.62 1,17,673.71 2233.43 4390 11995104
Lease liabilitics {Gruss) §52.70 18784 7.8 18 1,038.36

Derivative financial liabilities

Farvwards 1494 45 144 45 - - 194,45
194.45 194.45 - - 194,45
As at March 31, 2024 Ampunt in INR Lukhs
Particulars Carrying Comractual cash Mows
-1 vear I -5 vears Above 5 years Total

Nogederivative financiad abilitics

Borrowing S4TRT3 5283356 L24B 63 114 33,083,327
Trade payables 2343771 21343771 - - 3343771
Other financial labilies ik BT 1,669, 79 1,669 79

TYBE9E4 77,941.05 2,248.63 L.14 B0, 190.81

Lease liahilities (Grosw) 7349 147,72

Mw 50
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BN, AGRITECH LIMITED
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Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

As b April 01, 2023

Amgunt in INR lakhy

Particulars Carrying amount Contriciusl cah fows
-1 vear 1 -5 vears Abuve 5 vears Totul

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowing [EREIATH 1.429.28 364551 ila 507995
Trade pavables 388937 3B46.71 - - 384671
Other fmancial Tabilines 544.20 2,703,358 1.703.58

68,4901 7 797957 364551 S.16 11.630.25
Lease liabilitics (G rosa) 08319 154 88 55419 4382 952 9y

Market risk

Market risk 1= the risk that the fair value of future cash fows of a financial mstrement will Muctuate because of changes in markel prices. Marke! rick comprises [our types of nisk: Market risk is the risk that the
famr value of futuse cash flows of a finavcial mstrument will Muctuate because of changes i market prices. Market risk comprises three wpes of nsk: Currency nisk. merest rate risk and price risk.

a) Currency risk

Fareign currency nsk is the nisk that fair value of future cash fow of an exposwre will Mectuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company 's exposure 1o the nsk of changes i foreign exchange
ratcs relates primartly 1o the Company s operating activities. The Company has foreagn currency trade pavables and is therefore. exposed 1o a foresgn exchange risk.

The company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and Group follows established nsk management palicics including the use of dermauves like forcagn cxchange forward
and future contracis wo hedge exposurse 10 fareign currency risks

Foreign currency exposurcs recogmsed by the Companmy thar have not been hedged by a derivative istrument or etherwise are as under:

The Company’s exposure in forcign currency at the end of reporting period:

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars
Trade Recenvable
Trade payable
Expense pavable

Particulars
Trade Receivable
Trade payabic
Expense pavabic

Particulars
Trade Recervable
Trade payvable
Expense pavable

As at March 31, 2025

Amount in USD (lukhs) Amount in INR lakhs

L34y 20630

21349 2,000 30

As at March 31, 2024

Amwunt in USD {lakchs) Amount in INR Lakhs

I51% 126676

1519 1,266.76

As at 01 April, 2023

Amount in USD {lakhs) Amwunt in INR lakhs

A bly possible hening () 1gh of the INR. as indwated below, agamst the USD at March 31 would have increased {detreased) oquity and profit of loss by the amounts shewn below This
analy sis asswnes that all other variables. i partcular interest rates. remawm constant and ignores any impact of forccasted sales and puschases.
Partheudars Imypact on Profiti(loss) before tax Impact on Profit! (loss) before tax Impact on Pr before tax
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Strengthening Weakening S theni Weakeni St enin Weakening
USD - 1% Mavemean 20 03 =200.03) 124,68] =126 68 1000 .0

b} Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk s the risk than the farr value or Tutare cash Mows of a Ninansial mstrumen will fucieate because of chanpes m market mierest rates The Company's exposure w the risk of changes i market
nterest rates rebates peomarily 1o the Compamy s long-lerm and shor-term debt obbipations with Ploating interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

Below is the overall exposure of the Company 10 mierest rate risk

As at Asat
Partlcuions March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
Freed Rate borrowings 6, 190622 817410
Variabbe Rate borrowings 5400591 4793 40

N. Agritech [ ¢4
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No = UDL403MHE201 1 PLO448238

Notes to financial statements fur the vear ended March 31, 2025
Interesi rate sensitivity
The fullowing table demonstrates the sensitivity 10 a reasonably possible change i ilerest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affecied. With all ether vanables held ¢onstant, the Company 's profit
biefore tax is affectod through the unpact on floating rate borrowings. a5 foliows:

Ing rease/decrense in basis puines Effect vn profit efore tux
THH Jacs
31-Mar-23
Increase by S0 1A7M0.03}
Dicrease by -3 13
Increasediecrease in bavis paints Effeet un protic before tay
MK lacs
3=Mur-24
Inerezse by L1 122397
Decrease by -3 1397
Increase/decrease in basis puints Effect un preofit befare tax
INR s
31-Mar-23
Ingrease by 30 26230
Dhoctcase ty 1] 1162 30

) Price risk
The company is aflected by the price volatality of it's key materials. [t's operating activites requires a continuous supply of key material for manulasturing of edible oils. The company’s procurement depanment
contmeously moniior the fTucuznon n price and take ¥ action 10 minimise it's price 1isk

P

40 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

(i} Financial instruments by category amd Fair value
Thie fallowing table shows the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and liabilities s at March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 and April (1. 2023

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Particulars As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 Maurch 31, 2024 April i1, 2023 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Financial assets
A fair value through profit or loss

Investments 3i4.68 103,07 - EIEES 1307 =
At fair value throwgh other comprehensive|
AnCome

[Investments 0.0 k05 E V] 00 =
At amortised cost

Cash and cash cquivalents 41993 13 42800 #2993 13.01 A28 10
{ther Bank balance 1.2K6 36 330 50 SL0.08 1.284 36| 33050 S0k 8]
Trade recervables 58.369.93) 46,476 83 35674 98 5836903 40,476, 83 ELNT R
Other fenancial assels L7 02 1.265.83 348,71 1 BAT02 1.268K3 34871
Tonal financial assets 62,2%7.97) 44, 189.31 36,961, 76/ 62,287.97] 48,1831 36,961 .76}
Financial liabilitics #

At fadr value through profit or loss ‘
Deerivative Liabilities 194.45 - - 194,45 - -
At amortised cost

Barrowings 60,202.13 5470973 61,769 84 60,202.13 34,709.73 61,769, 84
Lease habihties 852.70 T3LAY 68819 B2 Til 4 GRE 19
Crher finanecinl habikities 141343 16649, 79 2,703.38 141343 1668 7% 2.703 58|
Trade payables SREI2.08 2343771 384671 SER12.05 2343771 384671
Total financial liabilitics 1,21,474.77 Bi),548.73] W,BU&JZI 1.21 47477 i), 548.73] 69,00, 32

The fanr vathue of financial assets and fnascial labilites which are recognized at amortized cost has been disclosed 10 be same as carrying value as the carrying value approximately equals 1 thear far value

(i) Measurement of fiir values
The different kevels of fair value have been defined below!
Level I Level | hicrarchy mcludes financial instruments measuied using quoted prices For tstance listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual fands thal have quoted price.

Level 2: The fawr value of financial mstrumenis that are wed traded in an active market (for example, iraded bonds. over-the counter derivatives) is o ined using valuation iechmiques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. I all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: 1§ one or more of the significant mpuls i w0l based on abservable market data. the instrument is inclucded n level 3

There have becn o valuation under Level | and Level 2. There has been no transfers into or out of Level 3 of the Tair value hierarchy for the vears ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024, April 01, 2023,

T 8. N. Agritech
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BN, AGRITECH LIMITED
CIN No = LOTHIGMH201 | PLUA4R23%
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

(i} Financial assets measured af fade value

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
As af March 31, 2025
Assets @t Fair value
Investments measured at fur value through profit and boss EIENS - - EIENE
Investments measured w Tor value through OCT - - Q.08 005
As at March 31, 2024
Assets at Fair value
Imvestments mzasueed a8 G value through profit and loss 13.07 - - L0307
Investments measured at fair value through OC] - - nos .08
As at April 01, 2023
Assets af fair vadue
Investments mecasured @t Gxir value throwgh profic and toss E . % =
Imvestments measured at fair value theowgh OCT - - - <

(iv) Financial Liabilities measured at fair valoe

Level Level 2 Level 3 Total
Asat March 31, 2025
Assets it fair value
Liabulitses measured at fair value through profit and loss - 19445 - §94.45
As at March 31, 2024
Assets at fuir vidue
Laabilities measwred at fair value through profi and loss - - - =
Liabilitics measurcd at amorized cos| - - - -
As at April 01, 2023
Asscts @l fair valoe
Laabilitics measured at fair value through profit and loss - - - -
Laatlities measured a1 amortized cost - - - .

Valuation process and technigue wsed to determine air value
ay The fair value of mvestments in mutual fund units are based on the ne asset value (NAY) as stated by (he issiers of these mutual fund wiits m the published siaicments as ai cach reporicd balance sheet dates.
NAV represents the price at whach the 1ssuer wall 1ssuc further unis of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redecm such units fram the mmvestars

by The Farr value of investment m equity msirumemt 15 derrved using valuaton methods which includes camings multiple approach and discounted cash flows

4

Capital management

The Board's policy mamtains a strong capital base so as to maivain investor, creditar and market confidence and 1o sustain futare development of the business, The Board of Direciors monitor the return an
capital employed as well as the fevel of dividend to sharcholders.

Far the purpose of the Company’s capital management. capital dncludes issued equity capital general reserves atnibutable o the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capstal management 15 1o

masimiss the sharcholder valus.
The Compaiy monitors capital usig a gearing oo, whick i net debt diaded by total capital plus net debt. The Company meludes withan net debt, micresi bearing loans and borrowings, | less cash and cash
equivalents,
Particul Asat As at Asat

e March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Borrowings (refor note 21 and note 22) 6, 240213 24,706 73 6l Tt 34
Lease lability jrefer note 6} #3270 73149 688 |9
Less: Cash and cash equivakems {refer note 12 429.93) (13.01) (428,003
Net Debi (A) ), 624,540 A5,428.22 6203002
Equsty share capital o264 40 3003 22 1,094 24
Othser Equity* 46060 67 3293835 18.557.7%
Total Cupital 55,329.07 35,941 .58 20,552.02
Gearing ratio (A/B) 144,57% 154.22% 301 82%

Mo changes were made in the abpectives. policwes or processes for manageng capital durmy the vears ended March 31, 2025 . March 31, 2024 and Apsil 01, 2023
*Ci by bie cumulative preds shares of IME Nil (March 31. 2024 INR 108894 lakhs. April 1. 2023 Nil} has been considered as equity for the purpose of caleulation OFW

o

N. Agritech
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42 Related party transactions

In accordance wath the requirement of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the name of related parties where control exists and / or with wham transacnons have taken place

during the vear and descripnon of relationships are

Name of related parties and nature of the related party relationship

Deseription of relationship

Nane of the party

Ulumate Holding Company

NA

Halding Company

NA

Intermediary holding

NA

Subsidiary subsidianes

NA

Fellow subsidianes

NA

Key management personnel

Mr_Ajay humar Agarwal (Whele-Time Director)

Mr.AnubhavAgarwal (Chairman & Mana= g Director)

Mr. Randeep Plaha (Chief Financial Officer)

M. Charu Mahara (Company Secretary)

Oher Related Party

Mr, Chintan Ajaykumar Shah (Executive Director)

Relanves of Key Management personnel

Mrs Ashima Agarwal (Spouse of Whole-ume Duractor)

Entitigs on which one or more Key Managerial Personnel
('EMP") have a sigmificant influence/ control

B N Enterprises

B N. Corporate Park Pvi Lid

B N Raj Infratech Pvi. Lid.

B N Agritech Asia Pre Lid.

B N Agntech Trade FAC{)

BN Hoeldings Singapore fie Lid

BN Heldings Europe Limited

BN Agnirade Afnca Limited

Basant Infracon Py, Lid

BN Haldings Limited

BNR'S Space Food & Agro products

Epitome Industries [ndia Limited

GPL Housing Pw. Lid

Growth Harvest Industries Pyt Lid

Kailbish Agro Industnies [OpC) pw. Lad

Kailhish Natural Resources pvt Lid.

Kaultush Industries Lumnited - Tanzania

LS Auwomobiles and Finance (Ca) Lid

NBC Agni Int | pw. Ltd.

Prabhu Infradevelopers Pyt Lid

Salasar Balaji Overseas Pwvi Lid:

Nutrica Foundation

SGSG Infrarentals Pyt Lid

b

Transactions with related party duning the year

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(i) Transactions with KMP during the vear
Repayment of loan

Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal

Mr. Anubhav Agarwal

Mz, Chintan Ajay Kumar Shah

Director's Remumeration
Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Mr. Anubhav Agarwal

Mr Randeep Plaha

Mrs Charu Mahara

Loans & Advances givei
Mr Randeep Plaha

Repayment of Loan
Mr. Randeep Plaha

Iszue of Equity Sharves
Mre. Anubhay Agarwal

Directors Sitting Fees
Ms. Adit Sharma
Mr. Sarvesh Bhasin

268 64 7515
2,984 76 195,91
1.ag
3,254.40 271.06
56.35 56.85
17744 174.00
4247 33.94
7.91 6,80
38467 171.59
- 20,00
= 20,00
9.60 .
9.60 -
2,062 04 .
2,062.04 N
210 198
208 3.00
4.15 4.98

The remuneration of key managenal personnel does not include the provisions of gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determtined on an actunal basis for the company as a whole.

V- Agritech i
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Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are w INR fakhs, undess othervie siated)

Revenue from operations

(ii) Transactions with entities on which one or more Key Managerial Personnel ('KMP") have a significant influence/ control

Salasar Balap Owerscas Pyt Lid 17.00 54]
Epitome Indusmes India Limited a3s i
Al Agn Global Pyt Led 12.00 =
Growth Harvest Industnes Private Linuted - 2060
2938 26.51
Purchases
Salasar Balay Overseas Pyt Lid. 3883 9995
B N. Comporate Park Pvi. Lid 15.71 -
54.54 99.95
Borrowings from Related Parties
BN, Ra Infratech Private Linuted = 95098
Epitome Industnes India Linuted £ 43900
Girawth Harvest Indusinies Privase Limited 2.350.00 447032
S.G8G. Infra Reatals Prvate Lemited - 404 54
Al Agn Global Pt Lid 27904 -
Mr. Anubhav Agarwal 2,984 6 -
Salasar Balap Overseas Pyt Lid 22.10 -
Mr. Chintan Ajay Kumar §hah 1.00
5.036.50 4,277,584
Repayment of loan
BN Raj Infratech Private Linuted = 500
Epitome [ndustnies India Limited - 430.00
Growih Harvest [ndusines Private Limited 2.350.00 -
5.G.5.G. Infra Rentals Privase Limited L1566 37
L § Awtomobles And Finance Co Linuted 1.088.98 -
NBC Agri International Private Limited 1,720.00 -
Al Agri Global Pvt Ltd 247.97 -
5.5 &62 449.73
Loan converted 1o Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares
BN Ra Infratech Private Limited - 154,98
Growth Harvest Industnies Private Limited - 4,786,260
8.G5.G Infra Rentals Private Limited - 1,258.54
= 11,199.78
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares to Equity Shares
BN Ray Infratech Private Limited 194 14 E
Growth Harvest Industnes Private Limited 61137 -
S5.G 5 G Infra Rentals Private Linuted 203.47 &
1,005.9% %
lssue of Equity Shares
Growth Harvest Industries Provate Limuted 1.834.12 =
1.834.12 11.199.78
(iii) KMP Com pensation details
(a) Short-term emplovee benefits 384.67 17159
384.67 271.59

¢) Ouistanding balances
Account Balance/Entity's Nam e

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(i) Outstanding balances of KMP
Loans and Advances
Mr. Randeep Plaha

Payable
Mr. Asay Kumar Agarwal
Mr. Anubhav Agarwal

Laoan from Dirvectors
Mr. Asay Kumar Agarwal
Mr. Anubhav Agarwal

Payahle
Salasar Balaji overseas pvt ltd
Ms. Adiy Sharma

Loans from Carporate
LS Automobiles and Finance (Co) Lid
NBC Agn International Pyt Lid

'T'B. N. Agritech Ltd

880

1540

5.80

18.40

0.70
342

268 64
0.10

168.74

(i) Outstanding balances of other related party and entities on which one or more Key Managerial Personnel ('"KMP") have a significant influence/ control

- 9193
0.50 5
0,50 91.93

- 1,088 98

- 1, 720.00

i 2,508.98
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(Al amounty ave in INR lakhs, unlesy otherwise stated)

43

First time Adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2025, are the first financial statements the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the
vear ended March 31, 2024, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together
with paragraph 7 of the Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2025, together with the comparative period data as at
and for the year ended March 31, 2024, as deseribed in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was
prepared as at April 01, 2023, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial
statements, including the balance sheet as at April 01, 2023 and the financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024,

Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The company has applied the following exemptions:
(i) Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS 101 peruts a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property,plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of
transition to Ind’AS measured as per the IGAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can alse be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38
“Intangible Assets'. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets at their IGAAP carrying value

(i) Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 by applving exemption provided under Ind AS 101. Following approach is followed on transition date (Apnl 01, 2023) when applying Ind AS 116
imitrally:

(1) the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental barrowing rate and

(11) the nght to use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application.

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

a) Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar charactenistics

b) Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date of initial application

¢} Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right=of-use asset at the date of initial application

Ind AS mandatory exceptions from retrospective application

(i) Estimates

The estumates at April 01, 2023 and at March 31, 2024 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP (afier adjustment to reflect any differences in
accounting policies) unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error, Key estimates considered in preparation of financial statements that were not required under the
previous GAAP are listed below: -

Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried are amortised cost.

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model

(i) Classification and ement of financial assets and liabilities

Classification of financial asset is required to be made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS, Further, if it is impracticable for the
Company to apply retrospectively the effective interest method in Ind AS 109, the fair value of the financial asset or the financial Liability at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be the new
gross camying amount of that financial asset or the new amortised cost of that financial liability at the date of transition to Ind AS,

“I'B. N. Agritech |
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - U0DI403MH2011PLC 448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amownis are in INR fakhs, unfesy otherwise siated)

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the bal

sheet as at April 01, 2023 (date of transition to Ind AS) :

Particulars Footnotes Previous GAAP Ind AS adjustments Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equpment 8,408 42 - 840842
Capital work-in-progress 1,741.14 - 1,741.14
Right-of-use assels 2 - 645 66 645 66
Intangble assets 133 - 1.53
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 66,99 54.89 121.88
Non=current tax assets (net) - - -
Financial assets

- Investments = =

- Other financial assets I 13947 113.67) 12581
Other non-current assets - - -
Total non-current assets 10,357.55 686.88 11,044.43
Current assets
Inventories 40,178.20 40,178 20
Financial assets

= Investments 5 - - -

- Trade receivables 2 35 836.86 (161.88) 3567498
- Cash and cash equivalents 428.00 - 428.00
- Other Bank balance S10.08 - S510.08
- Loang - -
= Other financial assets 22290 - 22290
Current tax assets - - -
Other current assets 3.224.30 - 3.224.30
Total current assets 80,400.33 (161.88) 80,238.45
Total Assets 90,757.89 525.00 91,282.88
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 1.994.24 1.994.24
Instruments entirely equity in nature - - -
Cither equity _

- Securities premium 8.542.24 8.,542.24

= Revaluation reserve 8 1,311.14 (1,311.14) -

- Retained earings 10 8.867.60 1,147 95 10,015.54
Total equity 20,715.22 (163.19) 20,552.02
Liabilities
Naon-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

-Borrowings 2,90327 290327

- Lease liabilities 2 - 590.82 590.82
Provisions 3 39.50 - 39.50
Tatal non-current liabilities 2,942.77 590.82 3,533.58
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 4 58 866.57 - 58,866.57

- Lease liahilities 2 - 9737 97.37

- Trade payables - & i

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - w ”
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.846.71 - 3,846.71

- 'Other current liabilities 4 2,70358 - 2.703.58
Current Tax Liabilities 695.64 - 695 64
Other current hiabilines 966.10 - 966.10
Provisions 21.30 - 21.30
Total current liabilities 67,099.90 97.37 67,197.28
Total Equity and Liabilities M), 757.89 £25.00 91,282.88

Direct Auth. Sin




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - UD1403MH2011 PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(AN amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

Particulars Footnotes Previous GAAP Ind AS adjustments Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7.605.94 - 7.605.94
Capital work-in-progress 6,054 42 - 6,054 42
Right-of-use assels 2 - 659,12 659.12
Intangible assets 56,77 4 56,77
Intangible assets under development 24.04 - 2404
Deferred lax assets (net) 6 153.44 56,21 209 65
Non=current lax assets (net) - = -
Financial assets
- Investments 0.05 - 0.05
= Other financial assets 1 74453 (1L31) 733.02
Other non-current assets - - -
Taotal non-current assets 14,639.18 703.82 15,343.00
Current asseis
Inventories 51,171.56 - 51,171.56
Financial assets
= Investments 5 100,00 307 103.07
- Trade receivahles 7 4661937 (142.51) 46.476.85
- Cash and cash equivalents 13.01 = 13.01
= Other Bank balance 330.50 - 330.50
= Loans - - -
= Other financial assets 532.81 - 532.81
Current Tax assets - - -
Other current assets 4.994.18 - 4,994 18
Total current assets 1,03,761.42 (139.44) 1,03,621.98
Total Assets 1,18,400.60 564.38 1,18,964.98
Equity and Liabilities
Equiry
Equity share capital 1.994.24 - 1,994.24
Instruments entirely equity in nature 1,008.99 - 1,008.99
Other equity -
- Secuniies premium 18.733.03 18,733.03
- Revaluation reseryve 8 L3ll.14 (1,311.14) A
- Retained eamings 10 13.061.31 1,144.02 14,205.33
Total equity 36,108.69 (167.12) 35,941.58
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 1,844.04 - 1,844.04
- Lease liabilities 2 - 644 .80 64480
Provisions 71.63 - 71.65
Total non-current liabilities 1,915.69 644.80 2,560.49
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 4 52.865.69 - 52.865.69
- Lease liabilities 2 - §6.70 86.70
- Trade payables -
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than nucro enterprises and small enterprises 2343771 » 2343771
- 'Other current liabilities 4 1.669.79 i 1,669.79
Other current liabilities 1,145.32 - 1,14532
Current Tax Liabilities 1,228.25 " 1,228.25
Provisions 29.46 - 29.46
Total current liabilities 80,376.22 86.70 80,462,92
Total Equity and Liabiliries 1,18.400.60 564.38 L 4 7,18,964.98 |
L
. Agritech |
Director/Auth. Sign.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025
(Al amounts arve in INR lakis, wilesy othierwise stated)

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the

of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

- Agritech L

Particulars Footnotes Previous GAAP Ind AS adjustments Ind AS
Income:
Revenue from operations 3.66.709.70 (71.80) 3.66,637.90
Other income 13 88.16 24.59 112,75
Total income 3,66,797.85 (47.21) 3.66,750.65
Expenses
Cast of Material Consumed 3,62,967 99 (71.80) 362,89 18
Changes n Inventonies (13,756.87) - (13,756.87)
Employee benefit expense 23 1,641.98 0.31 1.642.29
Finance costs 2 5.491.02 6407 555509
Deprecianon and amortisation expenses 2 1.209 48 126.26 1,335.73
Other expenses 2 3,371.22 (160 48) 3,210.74
Total expenses 3.60,924.81 141.65) 3.60,883.16
Exceptional item-Loss (I1T) 4.63 - 4.63
Profit before tax 5,868.41 (5.56) 5,862.86
Tax expense:
(i) Current tax
- for current year 1.564.49 - 1.564.49
- for earlier years 19668 - 196.68
(it) Deferred tax 6 (86.45) (140} {87.85)
Total tax expense 1,674.71 (1.40) 1,673.31
Profit for the year 4,193.70 (4.16) 4,189.55
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 9
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i} Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 3 - 031 0.31
(ii)  Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans 6 - (0.08) (1L08)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 0.23 0.23
IX Total comprehensive income for the year 4,193.70 (3.93) 4,189.78
Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cashflow for the vear ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Previous GAAP Ind AS adjustments Ind AS
Cash flows from operating activities 5,574.78 160.48 5,735.26
Cash flows from investing activities (4.638.41) - (463841}
Cash flows from financing activities (1.351.36) (160.48) (1,511.84)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() (414.99) - (414.99)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 428.00 428,00
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear (refer note 12 ) 13.00 - 13.00
Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023
X As at As at
P 1.
ardcuars Fecioaie March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
Other Equity as per Previous GAAP 33,105.47 18.720.98
Adjustments through Profit and Loss:
Financial assets measured at fair value through Profit & Loss 5 307 -
Impairment of Trade Receivables (142.51) (161.88)
Prior period errors - -
ESOP liabulity 7 - -
Impact of lease liabilities and right-of-use asset 2 (86.04) (56.20)
Unwinding of security deposit 1 2.16 -
Deferred tax impact of above adjustments 6 56.21 54 89
Equity as per Ind AS 32,938.35 18,557.79

M
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Notes fo financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Particulars March 31, 2024
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 419371
Adjustments:

Financial assets measured at fair value through Profit & Loss 307
Impairment! {Reversaljof Trade Receivables 19.37
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.31)
Impact of lease liabilities and right-of-use asset (29.84)
Unwinding of security deposit 2.16
Deferred tax impact of above adjustments 1.40
Profit for the year under Ind AS 4,189.55
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 0.23
Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS 4,189.78

Notes to first time adoption of Ind AS;

Security deposits

Under the Indian GAAP, interest free security deposits given for lease (that are refundable in cash and on completion of its term) are recorded at their transaction value. The C ompany has fair
valued these financial assets i.e. security deposit given under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recogmsed as ROU. On the date
of transition to Ind AS, the Company has recognised a right of use asset of INR 13.18 lakhs with a corresponding decrease in security deposits of INR 13.66 lakhs and a balancing impact of
INR 0.48 lakhs taken to retained eamings. Consequently, secunty deposit is accreted and interest income amounting to INR 2,15 fakhs has been booked during the year ended March 31,
2024,

2 Leases

Under Indian GAAP, lessee classified a lease as an operating or a finance lease based on whether or not the lease transferred substantially all risk and rewards incident to the ownership of an
asset. Operating lease were expensed in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS 116, all arrangement that falls under the definition of lease except those for which short-term lease
exemption or low value exemption 1s applied. the entity will recognise a right-of-use assets and a lease hability on the lease commencement date. Right-of-use assets is amortised over the
lease term on a straight line basis and lease liability is measured at amortised cost at the present value of future lease payments, Further interest is accrued on such lease liability., On transition,
the adoption of Ind AS 116 resulted in the ROU assets of INR 632.47 lakhs (excluding INR 13,18 lakhs on account of fair valuation of security deposit (refer footnote 1 above)) and lease
liability of INR 688.18 lakhs with a balancing impact amounting to INR 55.72 lakhs taken through retained earnings. There is an addition in right of use assets during the year 2023-24 by INR
139.72 lakhs and corresponding increase in lease liabilities. There is an increase in depreciation expense by INR 126.60. lakhs (including INR 2.48 lakhs on account of amortisation of the
amount arising from fair valuation of security deposits) during the year ended March 31, 2024, There is an increase in interest expense by INR 64.07 lakhs and reduction in lease liabilities on
account of payment of rent during 2023-24 amounting to INR 160,62 lakhs,

3 Employee benefits - Defined Benefit Plan/obligation:
Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS. the Company recognises costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under previous GAAP. the entire cost,
meluding actuarial gains and losses, are charged to statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS. remeasurements (comprising of actuarial gains and losses) are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Thus. the employee benefit cost is reduced by INR 0.31 lakhs and
remeasurement losses on defined benefit plans has been recognized in the OC],

4 Investments

Under previous GAAP, current investments were stated at lower of cost and fair value. Under Ind AS these financial assets have been classified as Fair Value through Profit and Loss
(FWTPL) on the date of transition and fair value changes after the date of transition have been recognised in statement of profit and loss,

Under previous GAAP, non-current investiments were stated at cost less provision for diminution in value of investment. if anv. Under Ind AS, these financial assets (except for investment in
subsidiaries) have been classified as Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) at the date of transition. The carrying amount of the investment and the fair value were same hence there was
no change on the transition date. Subsequently, investment is accreted and gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL amounting to INR 3.07 lakhs has been hooked during the vear
ended March 31, 2024,

N

Tax Adjustments

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12
requires entitics to account for deferred taxes using the Balance Sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrving amount of an asset or liability in the Balance
Sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences relating to various transition adjustments which are
recognised in correlation to the underlving transaction either in retained eamings as a separate component in equity. The changes in the deferred tax assets are on account of adjustments made
on transition to Ind AS amounting to INR 54 89 lakhs and during the year ended March 31, 2024 is INR 1.32 lakhs.

=

Impairment of financial assets - Trade receivables
Under Indian GAAP, the company has not recogmised provision for trade receivables. Under Ind AS, the company followed simplified approach to compute expected credit loss on trade
receivables. The company has measured loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for the trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component.

Transfer of Revaluation reserve
The Company has elected to avail the deemed cost exemption under Ind AS 101 - First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards for certain property, plant, and equipment (PPE).
Under this exemption, the Company has opted to measure PPE at its previously revalued carrying amount under Indian GAAP as the deemed cost on the transition date. ie., April 1, 2023

-1

As a result, the revaluation reserve, which was recorded under the previous GAAP, has been transferred to retained eamings in accordance with Ind AS 101

8 Other comprehensive income
Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCT) separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or loss as per Ind AS.
Further, Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

9 Retained earnings
Retaned earnings as at April 01, 2023 have been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

~or B. N. Agritech Ltd
g
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No = U01403MH201 1 PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amvaunts are an INR lakhy, unlesy otherwise stated)

45

(A

(B

Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprse for which discrete financeal information is available that s evaluated regulardy by the chief operating decision maker (*'CODM”),
m deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Company's chief operating decision maker 15 the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operanng Officer or any other persan as
appointed by the board of the company

The Company 15 primanly engaged in the business of processing, refining, and sale of edible oils. As the basic natuse of these activities are govemed by the same set of sk and return, these
constitute and are grouped as a single segmem. Accordingly, there 15 only one Reportable Segment for the Company which is “Edible Oils”, hence na specific disclosures have been made
Entity wise disclosures

lnformation about Geographical Areas

The Company denves revenue from following major geographical areas

A For the year ended For the year ended
s 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Domestic 6,27.979.26 3,66,637.90
Dutside India (Includes Deemed Expart) - -
All the non-current assets of the company other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, pos ployment benefit assets are located m Incia.

Information about Major Customers (from External Customers)

The Company denves revenues from the following customers where each contributes to 10 per cent or more of an entity's revenues:

For the year ended For the year ended

External Customers 31 March 2015 31 March 2024

Directoffuth, Sign.




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN No - U403MH201 1PLC448238

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Y ooty are i INK lakhs, uniess otherwese stated)

46 Commitments, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

A) Commitments
1) The Company did not have any commitments/contracts to be exceuted on capital account fot the year ended 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 and 011 Apnil 2023
11} For lease and denvatives commitments, refer note 6 and 41 respectively

B) Contingent Liabilities
Patanjali Foods Limited has filed a suit for permanent imjunction for their registered T "Nutrela” and "Nutnicia® (under edible ol categary) against B N Agritech Limited for their newly launched product under the tradename
“Nutrica” {under edible oil category ) The suit was filed on 29.07 2024 and is currently pending before the Delhi High Court,

) Contingent Assets
The company has no eontingent asset as on 31 Mareh 2023, 31 March 2024 and 01 April 2023,

47 The Company has used accounting software for mamtaining s books of aceount which has a feature of recording audit tras! {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all selevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further no mstance of audit teail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of software. The data s preserved as per the precnbed policy of the companmy per The Companies Act, 2013

48 Additional regulatory disel
(1) Details of Benami Property held
There are no procecdings that have been mitated or pending aganst the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benamu Property Transactions Act, 1983 {as amended from time v time) {earlier Benami
Transactions | Prohibition] Act, |98%) and the rubes made thereunder.
(i) Wilful defaulier
The Company has aot been declaed walful defaulier by any bank or financial institution or other lender

fiiip Compliamce with number of layers of companies
The Company has not made any investment, hence compliance with the number of layers 25 not applicable .

(iv) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premiom
| The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or shire premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other personis) or entity (ies), including foreign enteties ( Intermediaries”) with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or atherwise) that the latemmediany shall
{1} dueetly or indirectly lend to ar invest i other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Bene eianes ), or
{n) provide any guarantee. secunty or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries,
2 The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) ar entityiics), mcluding forcign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recarded n wrting or atherwise) that the company shall
(e} directhy or indireetly lend or myvest in other persons o1 entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ulumate Beneficiariesy; or
(1) provide any guasantee. secunty or the like on behalf of the Uhimate Beneficiarics

(v) Undisclosed income
The Company does oot have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as ncome dunng the vear in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 {such as search or SELEVEN OF Ay
other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Ace. 1961). Further, there was no previcusly unrecorded income and no additional assets were required 1o be recorded in the books of account during the vear

(vi) Details of cryplocurrency or virtual currency
The Campany has neither traded nor invested n enplocurrency or virtual currency duning the financial vear ended March 31, 2025 Further. the Company has alsa nor recelved any deposits or advances from any person for the purpose
af trading or i g 1N ervplo v ar virtual

(wii) Tramsaction with struck off Companies
The Company has not entered into any teansactions with struck off compariies, as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thercunder.

(wiil) The Company does not have any charges or sanstaction which 15 vel ta be registered with ROC bevond the statutory period
{ix) Quarterly retums or statements of current asscts filed by the Company with the banks in connection with the working capital limit sanctioned are in agreement with the hooks of accounts

ix} The title deeds of all the immovable propertics (other than propertics where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly exceuted n favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company

49 The Company. has during the vear, nat received any mtimation from any of its suppliers regarding their status under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and henee diselasures, if an v, relating to amounts
unpaid as al the vear end along with interest paid/pavable as required under the said Act have not heen given. Based on the information available with the Company there are no principal interest amounts due 1o micro, small and
medium eatermpnses,

30 There are no other material adjusting or non-adjusting subsequent events, except as already diselosed

51 Previous vear figures have been regrouped reclassified wherever necessary to confinm to this sear’s classification.

52 In Current year, i revaluation has been done for Property. plant and cquipment and Intangible assets.

For Mis J 8 M G & Associates For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants B.N, Agritech Limited Far R M
Firm Registration No. 025006C T B, N, AQ r M

\""#

CA. Shruti Goyal
Partner
Membership No 428276

Ok B Sl ) Sign.

(Director)
DIN 05257050

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 19,2025

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19,2023 Date: June 19,2025
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

The financial statements comprise financial statements of B.N. Agritech Limited (the Company) (CIN
UOT403MH2011PLC448238) for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Company is listed by shares and is incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 217,
Adani, Inspire-BKC, Situated G Block BKC Main Road, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra(East), Mumbai, Mumbai,
Mabharashtra, India, 400051,

The Company is principally engaged in the Fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) business and is one of the leading
emerging Edible Oil Manufacturing Company in North India. The Company has set up its footprints in the industry with
its clear image and fair-trade practices. The company already has a strong presence in FMCG Sector with both Wholesale
and Retail Sales with its brands "Simply Fresh", "Sakar Lite", “Nutrica”, which is a household name within Northern India.

The Standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of
Directors of the Company on ....................

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time), (Ind AS compliant
Schedule I11),.

Up to the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements
of the Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), other pronouncements of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the relevant provisions of the Act. which was the previous GAAP. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2023.
The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-
Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition have been
summarized in Note 43,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which
have been measured at fair value:
e  Derivative financial instruments, and
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

The accounting policies and related notes further described the specific measurements applied for each of the assets and
liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the years presented in the Financial Statements.
These Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company segregates assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories for presentation in the balance sheet
after considering its normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements™.

Direc Or/Auth, Sian




B.N.AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For this purpose, current assets and liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified period up to twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

a.  Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognized as at April 1, 2023, measured as per the Previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of such property, plant and equipment.

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if
the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and equipment which
are not ready for their intended use as on the balance sheet date are disclosed as "Capital work-in-progress". Directly
attributable expenditure related to and incurred during implementation of Capital projects to get the assets ready for intended
use and for a

qualifying assets is included under “Capital work-in-progress (including related inventories)”. The same is allocated to the
respective items of Property Plant and Equipment on completion of construction (development of projects).

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a written down value basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
per The Companies Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Assets Useful Lives (in years)
Buildings 30-60 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Electronic Installation 10 years
Laptop and Computers 3 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Motor Vehicles 8-10 years
Plant & Machinery 10-25 years

Frechold Land is not depreciated




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

b. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The residual value of intangible assets
is assumed to be zero unless certain criteria are met.

When these criteria are met, the residual value is the estimated fair value of the intangible asset at the end of the asset’s
useful life.

The residual value of an intangible asset shall be assumed to be zero unless at the end of its useful life to the entity the asset
is expected to continue to have a useful life to another entity and either of the following conditions is met:

a. The reporting entity has a commitment from a third party to purchase the asset at the end of its useful life.

b. The residual value can be determined by reference to an exchange transaction in an existing market for that asset and that
market is expected to exist at the end of the asset’s useful life.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or
acquired
Trademarks Finite (5 years) Amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the Acquired
trademarks
Computer Software Finite (5 years) Amaortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the Acquired
computer softwares
c Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts inINR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the company has applied the practical expedient, the company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows :

Financial assets at amortised cost

* Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

¢  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost

A *financial asset” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment as per the accounting policy applicable to ‘Impairment of financial assets.’
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation for the issuer and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. Equity investment which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in
the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets in this category are those that are held for trading and have been either designated by management upon
initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109 i.e. they do not meet the criteria
for classification as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon
initial recognition, if the designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis. Such designation is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. For the company, this category includes derivative instruments and listed
equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.




B.N.AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Interest earned on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income, using the EIR, taking into account any
discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets
mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using the contractual interest rate. Dividend income on listed
equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other income when the right of payment has been
established.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e removed from the Company’s Standalone balance sheet) when:

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation fo pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset..

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

In case of trade receivables, the company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is

measured and recognised as loss allowance. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates
over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates,

At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition, measurement and presentation

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.




B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
* Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

1 O. N. Agritech Lid.
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities at fuir value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss only if the criteria in Ind
AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCIL. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

The Company has designated derivative liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Borrowings and other financial liabilities)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

d. Foreign currencies translations

[tems included in the Financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The Company’s financial statements are presented
in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss W
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B.N. AGRITECH LIMITED

CIN: U01403MH2011PLC448238

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

e Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments in mutual funds and unquoted
equity instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liabilities takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in absence of
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required
to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management or its expert
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts
and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

f. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of goods (Edible Oil)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally at the time of dispatch from the point of sale i.e. the date when the goods are released to the carrier responsible
for transporting them to the customer. The normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon delivery.

Revenue from the sale of packaged oil is recognized at the point in time when control transfers to the customer, which
typically occurs upon delivery at the customer’s premises, as specified by the terms of sale.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which
a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of edible oils, the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration and consideraﬁ\p;{ywstomer (if any). Revenue is
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measured after deduction of any discounts, price concessions, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the government such as goods and services tax, etc. The Company accrues for such discounts, price concessions and
rebates at inception to determine the transaction price based on historical experience and specific contractual terms with
the customer.

Variable Consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount (like volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc.), the
Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The estimate of variable consideration for expected cash
discounts, etc. are made on the most likely amount method.

Consideration payable to the customer

Consideration payable to a customer includes cash amounts that the Company pays, or expects to pay, to the customer.
Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required

before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (m) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received, or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Company transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related services to the customer).

Other revenue streams
Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

g. Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.
Current and deferred taxes are recognized in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax
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Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company reflects the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by
using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the
treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences and in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity which intends either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered..

h. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale (qualifying asset) are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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i Leases

Compuany as a lessee

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:
»  Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
= Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application
*  Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application
Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or terminate the
lease

Right-of-Use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the right-of-use assettransfers to the Company at the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (k) Impairment of
non-financial assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. Lease liability
and ROU asset have been separately presented in the standalone balance sheet and lease payments have been classified
as financing cash flows.

Short-term leases and lease of low value assets
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The Company has applied the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) and low-
value assets recognition exemption.

j- Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition are accounted for as follows:

e  Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

e Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis.

e Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

The Company assesses whether climate risks, including physical risks and transition risks could have a significant impact.
If so, these risks are included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts

q. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net

of any reimbursement. U/V
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because;

-it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or
-the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence and other required disclosures in notes to
the financial statements, unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by- the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. The
Company does not recognize the contingent asset in its standalone financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company disclose
a brief description of the nature of contingent assets at the end of the reporting period. However, when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and the Company recognize such assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

L Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement and other employee benefits include gratuity, contribution to provident fund and compensated absences.

Short term employee benefits :

Short-term employee benefit obligations are recognised at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for

the year in which the related services are received. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12
months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as employee benefit payable under other
financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Post employment benefits :

a) Defined Benefit Plans: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("the Gratuity Plan")
covering eligible Indian employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure
of employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard to these defined benefit plans are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an external actuary,
at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method. These defined benefit plans expose the Company to
actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market risk. The gratuity plan is a non funded plan and the
Company makes provision in the books of accounts based on the actuarial report. Company’s contributions due/ payable
during the year towards provident fund is recognized in the statemew?p({hd.—lﬂs/s:
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b) Defined Contribution Plan: Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Corporation,
National Pension Schemes is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the said funds as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities
in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees, where the Company has no further obligations
beyond the monthly contributions. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund
Plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if
the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

m. Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

n. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

0. Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of company (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

p. Events after reporting date

If the Company receives information after the reporting period, but prior to the date of approved for issue, about conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess whether the information affects the amounts that it recognises
in its separate financial statements. The Company will adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect
any adjusting events after the reporting period and update the disclosures that relate to those conditions in light of the new
information. For non-adjusting events after the reporting period, the Company will not change the amounts recognised in
its separate financial statements but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting event and an estimate of its financial effect,
or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if applicale'

q.- _ Exceptional Items
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On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the
Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company. Such income or expense
is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the financial statements.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August
2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to
all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general
model, supplemented by a specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach) and
a simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company’s separate financial statements as the
Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

(ii} Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS
116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Standards notified but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group will adopt this new and amended standard, when it become
effective.

Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to Ind AS 21

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates to
specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate
when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial
statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect,

the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. When applying the
amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company's financial statements.

X Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptiW-

*- Agritech Ltd.
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The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
»  Capital management Note 41

»  Financial risk management Note 39

»  Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 38 and Note 39.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which do
not have the material effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the right-of-use assets).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Standalone
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are
based on days past due for Companyings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). The provision
matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The assessment of the correlation
between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade rcccivablez&gw”m assets is disclosed in Note 40.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invelved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The calculation is most sensitive to changes in the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond
correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 39.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B.N. Agritech Limited

8. N. Agritech /%

D 'rrecf’j?;qx

Ajay Kumar thi-v%?a’l Chintan Ajay Kumar Shah
(Whole Time Director) (Director)
DIN : 02149270 DIN : 05257050
(New Delhi) (New Delhi)
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19,2025 Date: June 19,2025
b -




	cf2f8bacaeff6ceb0f92ad593e897dec19e7db831b10fec8412ecaaf5a1fee0a.pdf
	c1a34ef8827647510b23be14406a19f899e5bc1bed2cac1b8642760bd9136afd.pdf

	77bfa2914580ee1d8a9c59f97296bc0bf37bc4fb6bf18ebfdb1f09531d3ffe66.pdf
	cf2f8bacaeff6ceb0f92ad593e897dec19e7db831b10fec8412ecaaf5a1fee0a.pdf
	9cb8c0e5afa820ed4d3f72a8302a567ecfb6de893dab4a642deec42d202e48c6.pdf
	c1a34ef8827647510b23be14406a19f899e5bc1bed2cac1b8642760bd9136afd.pdf

	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf
	7642cdaf202670bd275d891658085d78be27447f45a42aa111fe29cc4d6aab5b.pdf

